
 

 

 
 

#plymplanning 

 
 
 

PLANNING COMMITTEE 
 

Thursday 24 August 2023 

4.00 pm 

Council Chamber, Council House 
 

Members: 

Councillor  Stevens, Chair 

Councillor Tuohy, Vice Chair 

Councillors Allen, Darcy, McNamara, Nicholson, Penrose, Poyser, Reilly, Smith, Stoneman, 

Tuffin and Ms Watkin. 
 

Members are invited to attend the above meeting to consider the items of business overleaf. 
 

This meeting will be webcast and available on-line after the meeting.  By entering the Council 

Chamber, councillors are consenting to being filmed during the meeting and to the use of the 

recording for the webcast. 
 

The Council is a data controller under the Data Protection Act.  Data collected during this 

webcast will be retained in accordance with authority’s published policy. 

 

You can watch any of our webcast meetings on YouTube. For further information on attending 

Council meetings and how to engage in the democratic process please follow this link – Get 
Involved 
 

 

Tracey Lee 

Chief Executive 

 

 Oversight and Governance 

Chief Executive’s Department 

Plymouth City Council 

Ballard House 

Plymouth  PL1 3BJ 

 

Please ask for  Democratic Support 

T 01752 668000 

E democraticsupport@plymouth.gov.uk 

www.plymouth.gov.uk/democracy 

Published 15 August 2023 

https://www.youtube.com/playlist?list=PLW0qNdfVlat35d9TRrIZF8fstPQ3ucVRl
https://www.plymouth.gov.uk/get-involved
https://www.plymouth.gov.uk/get-involved
http://www.plymouth.gov.uk/


 

 

 

Planning Committee 
 

 

AGENDA 

 

PART I – PUBLIC MEETING 

  

1. Apologies    
  

 To receive apologies for non-attendance submitted by Committee Members.  

  

2. Declarations of Interest    

  

 Members will be asked to make any declarations of interest in respect of items on this 

agenda. 

  

3. Minutes   (Pages 1 - 4) 

  

 The Committee will be asked to confirm the minutes of the meeting held on 20 July 2023. 

  

4. Chair's Urgent Business    

  

 To receive reports on business which, in the opinion of the Chair, should be brought 

forward for urgent consideration. 

  

5. Questions from Members of the Public    

  

 The Chair will receive and respond to questions from members of the public submitted in 

accordance with the Council’s procedures. Questions shall not normally exceed 50 

words in length and the total length of time allowed for public questions shall not exceed 

10 minutes. Any question not answered within the total time allowed shall be the subject 

of a written response. 

  

6. Planning Applications for consideration    

  

 The Assistant Director for Strategic Planning and Infrastructure will submit a schedule 

asking Members to consider Applications, Development proposals by Local Authorities 

and statutory consultations under the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 and the 

Planning (Listed Building and Conservation Areas) Act 1990. 
  

 6.1. 19 Canhaye Close, Plymouth, PL7 1PG - 23/00752/FUL (Pages 5 - 10) 

   

  Applicant: Mr Gordon Cook 

Ward: Plympton Erle 

Recommendation: Grant 

Conditionally 
 

   

 6.2. 9 Guelder Way, Plymouth, PL6 6FR - 23/00955/FUL (Pages 11 - 16) 



 

 

   

  Applicant: Mrs Michelle Ottley  

Ward: Southway  

Recommendation: Grant 

Conditionally 

 

 

   

 6.3. Land at Petersfield Close, Plymouth, PL3 6QP - 22/01994/FUL (Pages 17 - 46) 

   

  Applicant: Mr A Cottenham 

Ward: Compton 

Recommendation: Grant 

Conditionally 
 

   

7. Planning Application Decisions Issued   (Pages 47 - 64) 

  

 The Assistant Director for Strategic Planning and Infrastructure, acting under powers 

delegated to him by the Council, will submit a schedule outlining all decisions issued from 

11 July 2023 to 14 August 2023, including – 

 

1)  Committee decisions; 

2)  Delegated decisions, subject to conditions where so indicated; 

3)  Applications withdrawn; 

4)  Applications returned as invalid. 

 

Please note that these Delegated Planning Applications are available to view online at: 

http://www.plymouth.gov.uk/planningapplicationsv4/welcome.asp  

  

8. Appeal Decisions    

  

 A schedule of decisions made by the Planning Inspectorate on appeals arising from the 

decision of the City Council will be submitted.  Please note that these Delegated Planning 

Applications are available to view online at:  
http://www.plymouth.gov.uk/planningapplicationsv4/welcome.asp  

  

9. Exempt Business    

  

 To consider passing a resolution under Section 100A(4) of the Local Government Act 

1972 to exclude the press and public from the meeting for the following item(s) of 

business on the grounds that it (they) involve(s) the likely disclosure of exempt 

information as defined in paragraph(s) … of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Act, as 

amended by the Freedom of Information Act 2000.  

  

 

http://www.plymouth.gov.uk/planningapplicationsv4/welcome.asp
http://www.plymouth.gov.uk/planningapplicationsv4/welcome.asp


This page is intentionally left blank



 

Planning Committee Thursday 20 July 2023 

OFFICIAL 

Planning Committee 
 

Thursday 20 July 2023 

 

PRESENT: 

 

Councillor Stevens, in the Chair. 

Councillor Tuohy, Vice Chair. 

Councillors Allen, Darcy, McNamara, Nicholson, Penrose, Poyser, Reilly, Stoneman, 

Tuffin and Ms Watkin. 

 

Apologies for absence: Councillor Smith 

 

Also in attendance:   Natalie Gloyn (Lawyer), Carly Francis (Area Planning 

Manager), Luke Valentine (Planning Officer), Sam Lewis (Planning Officer), Helen 

Rickman (Democratic Advisor) and Jake Metcalfe (Democratic Advisor). 

 

The meeting started at 4.00 pm and finished at 4.46 pm. 

 

Note: At a future meeting, the committee will consider the accuracy of these draft minutes, 

so they may be subject to change.  Please check the minutes of that meeting to confirm 

whether these minutes have been amended. 

 

11. Declarations of Interest   

 

There were no declarations of interest made by Members in accordance with the 

code of conduct.  

 

12. Minutes   

 
The Committee agreed the minutes of the meeting held on 14 June 2023 as an 

accurate record. 

 

13. Chair's Urgent Business   

 

Under this item the Chair welcomed Councillor Paul McNamara to his first Planning 

Committee meeting following his successful election.  

 

14. Questions from Members of the Public   

 

There were no questions from members of the public. 

 

15. Planning Applications for consideration   

 

The Committee considered the following applications, development proposals by 

local authorities and statutory consultations submitted under the Town and Country 

Planning Act, 1990, and the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservations Areas) Act, 

1990. 

 

Page 1 Agenda Item 3



 

Planning Committee Thursday 20 July 2023 

OFFICIAL 

16. 17 Kingston Close, Plymouth, PL7 2XA - 23/00785/FUL   

 

Miss Amy Neale 

Decision: 

Application GRANTED conditionally. 

 

17. 23 Honicknowle Lane, Plymouth, PL2 3QS - 23/00775/FUL   

 

Mr and Mrs Ryles 

Decision: 

Application GRANTED conditionally 

 

18. Land Adjacent to 18A Torland Road, Plymouth, PL3 5TS - 23/00696/S73   

 

Grant and Toby Noble and Roach 
Decision: 

Application GRANTED conditionally. The following was also agreed: 

 

To add a condition that the remaining trees on the site are retained and protected 

during the construction process; 

 

To add a condition that a landscape management plan is formulated and agreed; 

 

To amend an existing condition related to planting/ soft landscaping to provide for 

the agreed planting scheme to be implemented in the first planting season following 

completion of the development; 

 

 

(The Committee heard from Councillor Dr Mahony, Ward Councillor) 

 

(The agent spoke in support of the application) 

 

(Councillor Darcy’s proposal to add a condition to retain and protect the remaining trees on 

site, seconded by Councillor Stevens, was agreed by the Committee) 

 

(A site visit was scheduled for this planning application, held on 19 July 2023) 

 

19. Planning Application Decisions Issued   

 

The Committee noted the report from the Service Director for Strategic Planning 

and Infrastructure on decisions issued since the last meeting.  

 

20. Appeal Decisions   

 

The Committee noted the schedule of appeal decisions made by the Planning 
Inspectorate. 

 

21. Exempt Business   

 

There were no items of exempt business. 

Page 2



 

 

OFFICIAL 

PLANNING COMMITTEE – 20 July 2023  

 

SCHEDULE OF VOTING  
 

Minute number and 

Application 

Voting for  Voting 

against 

Abstained Absent 

due to 

interest 

declared 

Absent 

6.1 

 

 

 

 

 

 

17 Kingston Close, 

Plymouth, PL7 2XA – 

23/00785/FUL 

 

GRANTED conditionally 

Councillors 

Stevens, Tuohy, 

Allen, Darcy, 

McNamara, 

Nicholson, 

Penrose, Poyser, 

Reilly, 

Stoneman, 

Tuffin and 
Watkin 

 

   

 

 

 

 

 

 

Councillor 

Smith  

6.2 23 Honicknowle Lane, 

Plymouth, PL2 3QS – 

23/00775/FUL 
 

GRANTED conditionally 

 

Councillors 

Stevens, Tuohy, 

Allen, Darcy, 
McNamara, 

Nicholson, 

Penrose, Poyser, 

Reilly, 

Stoneman, 

Tuffin and 

Watkin 

 

   Councillor 

Smith 

6.3 Land Adjacent to 18A 

Torland Road, Plymouth, 

PL3 5TS – 23/00696/S73 

 

GRANTED conditionally 

Councillors 

Stevens, Tuohy, 

Allen, Darcy, 

McNamara, 

Nicholson, 

Penrose, Poyser, 

Reilly, 

Stoneman, 

Tuffin and 

Watkin 

   Councillor 

Smith 

  

Page 1 Minute Annex Page 3



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 4



 

   

PLANNING APPLICATION 
OFFICERS REPORT 

 
 

Site Address 19 Canhaye Close  Plymouth  PL7 1PG       

Proposal To extend front and rear dormers 

Applicant Mr Gordon Cook 

Application Type Full Application 

Target Date    11.08.2023 
Committee 
Date 24.08.2023 

Extended Target Date 29.08.2023   

Decision Category PCC Employee 

Case Officer Cody Beavan 

Recommendation Grant Conditionally 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Application 
Number   23/00752/FUL  Item 01 

Date Valid 16.06.2023  Ward PLYMPTON ERLE 

Page 5 Agenda Item 6.1



 

 

 
 
This application comes before the Planning Committee as the applicant is an employee 
of Plymouth City Council 
 
1. Description of Site 
19 Canhaye Close is a two-storey semi-detached dwelling in the Plympton Erle Ward of the city. 
 
The property features existing front and rear dormers which each measure approximately 3.6m in 
width with one window. Front and rear dormers are a prominent feature of the street with various 
designs, a number along Canhaye Close have been extended therefore a precedent has been set.  
 
2. Proposal Description 
To extend front and rear dormers.  
 

Page 6



 

 

The dormers will be extended by approximately 2m in width to accommodate an additional window 
at the front and rear of the property.  
 
The materials are proposed to match the existing property and are in-keeping with the surrounding 
area. 
 
3. Pre-application enquiry 
There was no pre-application enquiry. 
 
4. Relevant planning history 
None. 
 
5. Consultation responses 
None consulted.  
 
6. Representations 
None received. 
 
7. Relevant Policy Framework 
Section 70 of the 1990 Town and Country Planning Act requires that regard be had to the 
development plan, any local finance and any other material considerations. Section 38(6) of the 2004 
Planning and Compensation Act requires that applications are to be determined in accordance with 
the development plan unless material considerations indicate otherwise.  For the purposes of 
decision making, as on March 26th 2019, the Plymouth & South West Devon Joint Local Plan 2014 - 
2034 is now part of the development plan for Plymouth City Council, South Hams District Council 
and West Devon Borough Council (other than parts South Hams and West Devon within Dartmoor 
National Park). 
 
Other material considerations include the policies of the National Planning Policy Framework 
(NPPF), Planning Practice Guidance (PPG), National Design Guidance, the scale and urgency of the 
climate change emergency, Plymouth City Council's Declaration on Climate Emergency (March 2019) 
for a carbon neutral city by 2030 and the Climate Emergency Planning Statement 2022. Additionally, 
the following planning documents are also material considerations in the determination of the 
application: The Plymouth and South West Devon Supplementary Planning Document (SPD) (2020). 
 
8. Key Issues/Material Considerations 
1. This application has been considered in the context of the development plan, the Framework 

and other material policy documents as set out in Section 7. 
2. The relevant policies are: DEV1 (Protecting health and amenity) and DEV20 (Place shaping 

and the quality of the built environment) of the Plymouth and SW Devon Joint Local Plan. 
3. The primary planning considerations in this application are: visual impact and impact on 

neighbouring amenity. 
 
Principle of Development 
4. Joint Local Plan policies indicate that the proposal is acceptable in principle.  
 
Negotiations Undertaken 
5. The original plans submitted were considered acceptable and the assessment has been based 

on the original plans.  
 
Visual Impact 
6. Officers have considered the proposal's visual impact in line with policy DEV20 of the Joint 

local plan. 

Page 7



 

 

 
7. The proposal includes the extension of both front and rear dormers. The front dormer will 

be extended by 2m, going from 3.6m in length to 5.6m. Similarly, the rear dormer will be 
extended from 3.6m in length to 5.5m. The proposed materials include white UPVC shiplap.  

8. Whilst larger box dormers are generally considered to be undesirable under the SPD, 
extended dormers are characteristic of the street scene on Canhaye Close and the proposal 
would bring the dwelling in line with the adjacent dwellings. 

9. Taking into consideration paragraphs 13.49, 13.50, 13.51, and 13.52 of the SPD, officers are 
satisfied that the proposal does not represent a significant change to the dwellings overall 
aesthetic within the context of the current street scene and is in line with the precedent set 
by other dwellings on Canhaye Close. 

10. Overall, officers conclude that from a design perspective, the plans do not conflict with policy 
DEV20 of the JLP. 

 
Amenity 
11. Officers do not consider that the proposed works would have a detrimental impact on 

neighbouring amenity.  
12. This consideration has been made on the grounds that the proposed dormer extension does 

not create overlooking. Furthermore, the extension remains within the existing silhouette of 
the dwelling and would not impact on the outlook of neighbouring properties. Officers 
therefore do not consider the proposal to give rise to any privacy or outlook concerns.  

13. Overall, officers do not consider that the proposal will have a detrimental impact on 
neighbouring amenity, and therefore complies with Policy DEV1 of the Plymouth and South 
West Devon Joint Local Plan and guidance within the SPD. 

 
Climate Emergency Considerations 
This Climate Emergency Planning Statement responds directly to the Climate Emergency 
declarations issued across Plymouth and South West Devon and identifies exactly what all new 
development should do to meet the challenge of climate change. It builds on existing planning policies 
set out within the Plymouth and South West Devon Joint Local Plan and its supplementary planning 
document, embraces new standards and proposes new requirements. 
 
Officers have assessed the submitted Climate Emergency Compliance Form. Officers note the 
majority of the roof slope will be covered by the dormer windows, therefore, by virtue of the scale 
of the works and site specific circumstances the details as submitted are acceptable in this instance. 
 
9. Human Rights 
Human Rights Act - The development has been assessed against the provisions of the Human Rights 
Act, and in particular Article 1 of the First Protocol and Article 8 of the Act itself. This Act gives 
further effect to the rights included in the European Convention on Human Rights. In arriving at this 
recommendation, due regard has been given to the applicant's reasonable development rights and 
expectations which have been balanced and weighed against the wider community interests, as 
expressed through third party interests / the Development Plan and Central Government Guidance. 
 
10. Local Finance Considerations 
None. 
 
11. Planning Obligations 
The purpose of planning obligations is to mitigate or compensate for adverse impacts of a 
development, or to prescribe or secure something that is needed to make the development 
acceptable in planning terms.  Planning obligations can only lawfully constitute a reason for granting 
planning permission where the three statutory tests of Regulation 122 of the CIL Regulations 2010 
are met. 

Page 8



 

 

 
No planning obligations have been sought in respect of this application. 
 
12. Equalities and Diversities 
This planning application has had due regard to Section 149 of the Equality Act with regard to the 
Public Sector Equality Duty and the case officer has concluded that the application does not cause 
discrimination on the grounds of gender, race and disability. 
 
13. Conclusions and Reasons for Decision 
Officers have taken account of the NPPF and S38(6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 
2004 and concluded that the proposal is acceptable and accords with policies DEV1 and DEV20 of 
the Joint Local Plan, the guidance contained within the Plymouth and SW Devon SPD, and the NPPF. 
The application is therefore recommended for approval. 

 

14. Recommendation 

In respect of the application dated 16.06.2023 it is recommended to Grant Conditionally. 

 

15. Conditions / Reasons 
The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the following approved 
plans:  

  
1 CONDITION: APPROVED PLANS 

  
Existing and Proposed Front Elevation 22052023 received 22/05/23 
Proposed Rear Elevation 22052023 received 22/05/23 
Site Location Plan 01/19-CC/23 received 16/06/23 
Proposed Elevations and Floor Plan 04/19-CC/23 received 16/06/23 
 
Reason: 
For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of good planning, in accordance with the Plymouth & 
South West Devon Joint Local Plan 2014–2034 (2019). 
 
 2 CONDITION: COMMENCE WITHIN 3 YEARS 
 
The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of three years beginning 
from the date of this permission. 
 
Reason: 
To comply with Section 51 of the Planning & Compulsory Purchase Act 2004. 
 

 
INFORMATIVES 

 
 

1 INFORMATIVE: (NOT CIL LIABLE) DEVELOPMENT IS NOT LIABLE FOR A 
COMMUNITY INFRASTRUCTURE LEVY CONTRIBUTION 

 
The Local Planning Authority has assessed that this development, due to its size or nature, is exempt 
from any liability under the Community Infrastructure Levy Regulations 2010 (as amended). 

 
 

Page 9



 

 

 2 INFORMATIVE: CONDITIONAL APPROVAL (NO NEGOTIATION) 
 

In accordance with the requirements of Article 31 of the Town and Country Planning (Development 
Management Procedure) (England) Order 2010 and the National Planning Policy Framework, the 
Council has worked in a positive and pro-active way and has imposed planning conditions to enable 
the grant of planning permission. 
 
 3 INFORMATIVE: PROPERTY RIGHTS 

 
Applicants are advised that this grant of planning permission does not over-ride private property 
rights or their obligations under the Party Wall etc. Act 1996. 

 
 4 INFORMATIVE: COUNCIL CODE OF PRACTICE 

 
The applicant is directed to the Council's Code of Practice by the Public Protection Service (Control 
of Pollution and Noise from Demolition and Construction Sites): 
https://www.plymouth.gov.uk/sites/default/files/ConstructionCodeOfPractice.pdf 

Page 10



 

   

PLANNING APPLICATION 
OFFICERS REPORT 

 
 

Site Address 9 Guelder Way  Plymouth  PL6 6FR       

Proposal Garage conversion (retrospective) 

Applicant Mrs Michelle Ottley 

Application Type Full Application 

Target Date    25.08.2023 
Committee 
Date 24.08.2023 

Extended Target Date N/A   

Decision Category PCC Employee 

Case Officer Luke Valentine 

Recommendation Grant Conditionally 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Application 
Number   23/00955/FUL  Item 02 

Date Valid 30.06.2023  Ward SOUTHWAY 

Page 11 Agenda Item 6.2



This application comes before the Planning Committee as the applicant is an employee 
of Plymouth City Council 

1. Description of Site
9 Guelder Way is a two-storey mid-terrace dwelling located in the Southway ward of the city. 

2. Proposal Description
Garage conversion (retrospective) 

3. Pre-application Enquiry
No pre-application enquiry associated with this application. 

4. Relevant Planning History
No relevant planning history 

Page 12



 

 

 
5. Consultation Responses 
None requested.  
 
6. Representations 
No letters of representation received. 
 
7. Relevant Policy Framework 
Section 70 of the 1990 Town and Country Planning Act requires that regard be had to the 
development plan, any local finance and any other material considerations. Section 38(6) of the 2004 
Planning and Compensation Act requires that applications are to be determined in accordance with 
the development plan unless material considerations indicate otherwise. For the purposes of decision 
making, as of March 26th 2019, the Plymouth & South West Devon Joint Local Plan 2014 - 2034 is 
now part of the development plan for Plymouth City Council, South Hams District Council and 
West Devon Borough Council (other than parts South Hams and West Devon within Dartmoor 
National Park). 
 
Other material considerations include the policies of the National Planning Policy Framework 
(NPPF), Planning Practice Guidance (PPG) and National Design Guidance. Additionally, the following 
planning documents are also material considerations in the determination of the application:  
o The Plymouth and South West Devon Supplementary Planning Document (SPD) (2020). 
 
8. Key Issues/Material Considerations 
1. This application has been considered in the context of the development plan, the Framework 

and other material policy documents as set out in Section 7. 
2.  This application turns upon policies: DEV1 (Protecting health and amenity), DEV20 (Place 

shaping and quality of the built environment) and DEV29 (Specific provisions relating to 
transport) of the adopted Joint Local Plan.  

3.  The material planning considerations for this application are: 
- Design 
- Residential amenity 

 
Principle of Development 
4.  Joint Local Plan policies indicate that the proposal is acceptable in principle.   
 
Negotiations Undertaken 
5.  The original plans submitted were considered acceptable in-principle and the assessment has 

been based on the original plans.  
 
Visual Impact 
6.  Officers have considered the visual impact of the development against the guidance in the 

SPD and consider it acceptable. 
7.  The retrospective proposal of a garage conversion is considered to be appropriately 

subordinate and visually in-keeping with the primary dwelling. 
8.  The proposal is for the alteration of a pre-existing garage into an enclosed study and utility 

room. It would not result in any material change to the boundaries of the dwelling house, 
however the original garage door is replaced by a window.  

9.  Materials are specified in the application and consist of a dark grey uPVC window to match 
the existing dwelling house and brick fill in to match the original material of the garage. 
Officers merit the decision to match the replacement window to the existing property in 
both design and material. 

10.  Officers have considered that removing the garage could result in the loss of a parking place. 
However, as per the SPD 13.69, garages normally serve as storage space rather than parking 

Page 13



 

 

and officers note that there is an established principal on Guelder Way for residential 
driveways rather than garages being utilised for parking. Officers therefore conclude that that 
this would not represent sufficient grounds for refusal. 

11.  Finally, officers are satisfied that the removal of the garage door and addition of a window in 
its place would not have a detrimental effect on the dwellinghouse's presence in the existing 
street scene.  

12.  Reference to a hardstanding has been made on the proposed plans, however, as this would 
be permissible under The Town and Country Planning (General Permitted Development) 
(England) Order 2015, it has not been considered as part of this report. 

13.  Overall, officers conclude that from a design perspective, the plans do not conflict with policy 
DEV20 or DEV29 of the JLP.  

 
Amenity 
14.  Officers have considered the impact of the development on neighbouring amenity against the 

guidance in the SPD and consider it acceptable. 
15.  The proposal sits within the existing floorplan of the dwelling and would not breach the 45 

degree guideline of any adjacent properties, nor would the proposal result in an unacceptable 
obstruction of light or outlook.  

16.  The development does propose the installation of a new window on the front elevation of 
the property. The new window would face undeveloped land and would therefore not result 
in an impact on the amenity of neighbouring properties.  

17.  The proposed works have therefore been considered against the development guidance in 
terms of natural light levels, privacy and outlook and concluded to be acceptable and in 
accordance with policy DEV1 of the JLP. 

 
Climate Emergency Considerations 
18.  Officers have assessed the submitted Climate Emergency Compliance Form. Given the scale 

of the works under this household planning application, mitigation measures should be 
proportionate to the scale of the development proposed. 

19.  The scale of the development would not be sufficient so as to make the addition of solar 
panels efficient or cost effective. 

20.  Furthermore, the applicant has advised they are currently in the process of selling the 
property and it would therefore not be to their benefit to install an EV charging point. 

21.  Officers consider that by virtue of the scale of the works, the details as submitted are 
acceptable in this instance. 

 
9. Human Rights 
Human Rights Act - The development has been assessed against the provisions of the Human Rights 
Act, and in particular Article 1 of the First Protocol and Article 8 of the Act itself. This Act gives 
further effect to the rights included in the European Convention on Human Rights. In arriving at this 
recommendation, due regard has been given to the applicant's reasonable development rights and 
expectations which have been balanced and weighed against the wider community interests, as 
expressed through third party interests / the Development Plan and Central Government Guidance. 
 
10. Local Finance Considerations 
N/A.  
 
11. Planning Obligations 
The purpose of planning obligations is to mitigate or compensate for adverse impacts of a 
development, or to prescribe or secure something that is needed to make the development 
acceptable in planning terms.  Planning obligations can only lawfully constitute a reason for granting 
planning permission where the three statutory tests of Regulation 122 of the CIL Regulations 2010 
are met. 

Page 14



 

 

 
Planning obligations not required due to the nature and size of proposal. 
 
12. Equalities and Diversities 
This planning application has therefore had due regard to Section 149 of the Equality Act with regard 
to the Public Sector Equality Duty and has concluded that the application does not cause 
discrimination on the grounds of gender, race and disability.  
 
13. Conclusions and Reasons for Decision 
Officers have taken account of the NPPF and S38(6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 
2004 and concluded that the proposal accords with policy and national guidance (specifically JLP 
Policies DEV1, DEV 20 and DEV29). The proposal is therefore recommended for conditional 
approval. 

 

14. Recommendation 

In respect of the application dated 30.06.2023 it is recommended to Grant Conditionally. 

 

15. Conditions / Reasons 
The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the following approved 
plans:  

  
1 CONDITION: APPROVED PLANS 

  
As Approved and Proposed Ground Floor Plan and Front Facing Elevation 2675 (PL)-01 received 
28/06/23 
Site Plan TQRQM23226133848657 received 14/08/23 
 
Reason: 
For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of good planning, in accordance with the Plymouth & 
South West Devon Joint Local Plan 2014–2034 (2019). 
 
 2 CONDITION: COMMENCE WITHIN 3 YEARS 
 
The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of three years beginning 
from the date of this permission. 
 
Reason: 
To comply with Section 51 of the Planning & Compulsory Purchase Act 2004. 
 

 
INFORMATIVES 

 
 

1 INFORMATIVE: (NOT CIL LIABLE) DEVELOPMENT IS NOT LIABLE FOR A 
COMMUNITY INFRASTRUCTURE LEVY CONTRIBUTION 

 
The Local Planning Authority has assessed that this development, due to its size or nature, is exempt 
from any liability under the Community Infrastructure Levy Regulations 2010 (as amended). 

 
 

Page 15



 

 

2 INFORMATIVE: UNCONDITIONAL APPROVAL (APART FROM TIME LIMIT 
AND APPROVED PLANS) 

 
In accordance with the requirements of Article 31 of the Town and Country Planning (Development 
Management Procedure) (England) Order 2010 and the National Planning Policy Framework, the 
Council has worked in a positive and pro-active way [including pre-application discussions] and has 
granted planning permission. 

 
 3 INFORMATIVE: PROPERTY RIGHTS 

 
Applicants are advised that this grant of planning permission does not over-ride private property 
rights or their obligations under the Party Wall etc. Act 1996. 

 
 4 INFORMATIVE: HARDSTANDING 

 
Officers note that a hardstanding has been shown on the submitted plans. The hardstanding would 
be considered permitted development, provided that it meets the conditions outlined in Class F, Part 
1, Schedule 2 of The Town and Country Planning (General Permitted Development) (England) Order 
2015. Furthermore, this development is not referenced within the 'Description of Proposed Works'. 
It has therefore not been considered as part of this application. 

Page 16



 

   

PLANNING APPLICATION 
OFFICERS REPORT 

 
 

Site Address Land At Petersfield Close  Plymouth  PL3 6QP       

Proposal 
Erection of four dwellings with associated landscaping and construction 
of vehicular access (re-submission of 22/00651/FUL) 

Applicant Mr A Cottenham 

Application Type Full Application 

Target Date    07.02.2023 
Committee 
Date 24.08.2023 

Extended Target Date N/A   

Decision Category Councillor Referral 

Case Officer Miss Amy Thompson 

Recommendation Grant Conditionally 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Application 
Number   22/01994/FUL  Item 03 

Date Valid 13.12.2022  Ward COMPTON 

Page 17 Agenda Item 6.3



 

 

 
 
The planning application was referred to Planning Committee by Cllr Tippetts should officers be 
making a positive recommendation. 
 
1.  Description of Site 
The application site is at the eastern end of Petersfield Close and is an undeveloped tract of land. 
The application site is approximately 0.5ha in size and is part of a naturalised slope falling towards the 
north. The land is bordered by housing to the north, south and west whilst to the east is woodland 
below the grounds of Efford Cemetery. 
 
There is a large undeveloped tract of land to the west which is largely covered by a Tree 
Preservation Order (No. 537). The site sits within a well-established residential area.   
 
 
 

Page 18



 

 

2.  Proposal Description 
Erection of four dwellings with associated landscaping and construction of vehicular access (re-
submission of 22/00651/FUL). 
 
3. Pre-application Enquiry 
None associated with this application. 
` 
4. Relevant Planning History 
22/00651/FUL - Erection of 4 dwellings together with construction of vehicular access (re-submission 
of planning permission LPA ref: 17/02055/FUL, with minor amendments) - Refused due to insufficient 
information on protected species and  biodiversity net gain.  
 
17/02055/FUL - Erection of 4 dwellings and linked annex building together with construction of 
vehicular access - Granted conditionally 
 
961/64- Construct road, lay foul and surface water sewers together with layout of building plots at 
Petersfield Estate, Higher Compton- Granted conditionally  
 
816/1953 - Use land forming part of the Petersfield Estate and located at Higher Mowles Efford, 
Plymouth, for the construction of a new street and the erection of forty dwelinghouses - Granted 
conditionally. 
 
Neighbouring sites: 
Land Adj, 28 Petersfield Close - 21/01071/FUL - Detached dwelling with associated car parking, 
refuse storage and amenity space (re-submission of 21/00211/FUL) - Refused due to insufficient 
information on the impact on protected species and insufficient information on the impact on 
protected trees.  
 
Land Adj, 28 Petersfield Close - 21/01071/FUL - Detached dwelling with associated car parking, 
refuse storage and amenity space (re-submission of 21/00211/FUL) - Refused due to insufficient 
information on protected species and insufficient information on the impact on trees -APPEAL 
DISMISSED.   
 
Land Adj, 28 Petersfield Close - 21/00211/FUL - Detached dwelling - Withdrawn. 
 
28 Petersfield Close - 15/02050/FUL- Erection of detached dwellinghouse with integral private motor 
garage- Granted conditionally. 
 
Land adj To 29 Petersfield Close - 08/00623/FUL - Erection of detached dwellinghouse with integral 
double private motor garage - Granted conditionally. 
 
Land adjacent to 29 Petersfield Close - 07/01006/FUL - Detached house with integral garage - 
Refused - APPEAL DISMISSED. 
 
5. Consultation Responses 
Local Highways Authority - Recommend refusal on highway safety grounds and lack of sustainable 
travel credentials.  
Natural Infrastructure Team - Object.  
Public Protection Service - No Objections subject to recommended conditions. 
Lead Local Flood Authority-  Recommend condition requiring further information to be submitted 
that confirms the proposed surface water receiving sewer is available.  
Urban Design - Object. 
 

Page 19



 

 

6. Representations 
 
The Local Planning Authority has received a total of 106 public comments. 50 public comments 
objected to the scheme including one petition with 77 names, raising the following concerns: 
- Use of dangerous, unsuitable junction entrance to the site/ hazardous for pedestrians and 

traffic/ issues with public safety. 
- Loss/ impact on wildlife/habitats / nature/ biodiversity/ ecology/ protected species and green 

space 
- Impact on protected trees/ established woodland  
- Flooding/ subsidence  
- Compromise safety of the bank/ steep land 
- Should be designated as green space  
- Impact on climate change/ climate emergency  
- Noise, light and air pollution 
- Traffic generation 
- Disturbance to neighbours 
- Setting a precedent 
- Loss of trees and impact that has on landscape and water run off 
- Increased security risk  
- Overcrowd the area. 
- Parking and traffic issues. 
- Will not be affordable housing or for first time buyers. 
- Loss of green space, which needs to be conserved.  
- Biodiversity enhancements proposed will not replicate what is already there. 
- Design of house will result in bird strikes.  
- Houses not in keeping with the character, scale and design of the area and unlikely to be 

using public transport.  
-  Concerns houses and gardens will be used for parties. 
- Disturbance from construction of development 
- Existing road is not able to accommodate increase in vehicles. 
- Lack of engagement with local community.  
- Question the status of the extant planning permission. 
- Impact from lighting on wildlife. 
- Use of herbicides to clear vegetation and the impact this has on wildlife and pets. 
- Concerns about the submitted ecological reports and surveys. 
- No structural engineers report has been submitted. 
- Loss of privacy. 
- Is within meters of a known historic landfill and inside a potential high radon protection zone. 
 
Non-material planning considerations: 
- Loss of property value 
 
56 public comments were received that supported the proposal raised the following points: 
- Is a brownfield site that already has planning permission. 
- One tree is proposed to be removed. 
- Very positive and eco-friendly addition to the area.  
- Homes are future proof, modern, low carbon and suitable for the location. 
- Plymouth in need of housing/ helps housing crisis. 
- Improve existing street, enhance the area. 
- New road through woodland would open up space for public. 
- Support small business, promotes/ provide jobs  
- Need more eco-friendly homes to help with energy costs.  
- Not removing any green belt 

Page 20



 

 

- Opportunity to complete the road and create new housing for families as street looks 
unfinished. 

- Design has little impact on surroundings and with an emphasis on ecological improvements.  
- Good use of waste land that is dangerous and overgrown and had been used for fly tipping.  
- Proposed eco houses better than the original plans.  
- Impact on wildlife has been adequately addressed/ commitment to preserve and encourage 

wildlife on site. 
- Perfect infill site. 
- Houses will have good access to services.  
- Includes elements necessary for climate mitigation. 
- Attract new people into community. 
 
7. Relevant Policy Framework 
Section 70 of the 1990 Town and Country Planning Act requires that regard be had to the 
development plan, any local finance and any other material considerations. Section 38(6) of the 2004 
Planning and Compensation Act requires that applications are to be determined in accordance with 
the development plan unless material considerations indicate otherwise.  For the purposes of 
decision making, as on March 26th 2019, the Plymouth & South West Devon Joint Local Plan 2014 - 
2034 is now part of the development plan for Plymouth City Council, South Hams District Council 
and West Devon Borough Council (other than parts South Hams and West Devon within Dartmoor 
National Park). 
 
On 26 March 2019 the Plymouth & South West Devon Joint Local Plan was adopted by all three of 
the component authorities. Following adoption, the three authorities jointly notified the Ministry of 
Housing, Communities and Local Government (MHCLG) of their choice to monitor the Housing 
Requirement at the whole plan level. This is for the purposes of the Housing Delivery Test (HDT) 
and the 5 Year Housing Land Supply assessment. A letter from MHCLG to the Authorities was 
received on 13 May 2019 confirming the change. On 14th January 2022 the Department for Levelling 
Up, Housing and Communities published the HDT 2021 measurement. This confirmed the Plymouth. 
South Hams and West Devon's joint HDT measurement as 128 percent and the consequences are 
None.  
 
Therefore a 5 percent buffer is applied for the purposes of calculating a 5 year land supply at a whole 
plan level. When applying the 5 percent buffer, the combined authorities can demonstrate a 5-year 
land supply of 5.97 years at end of March 2022 (the 2022 Monitoring Point). This is set out in the 
Plymouth, South Hams & West Devon Local Planning Authorities' Housing Position Statement 2022 
(published 19th December 2022). 
 
Other material considerations include the policies of the National Planning Policy Framework 
(NPPF), Planning Practice Guidance (PPG), National Design Guidance, the scale and urgency of the 
climate change emergency, Plymouth City Councils Declaration on Climate Emergency (March 2019) 
for a carbon neutral city by 2030 and the Plymouth and South West Devon Climate Emergency 
Planning Statement (CEPS) 2022. Additionally, the following planning documents are also material 
considerations in the determination of the application:    
- Plymouth and South West Devon Joint Local Plan 2014-2034: Supplementary Planning 
Document (SPD) (July 2020) 
 
8. Analysis 
1. This application has been considered in the context of the development plan, the Framework 

and other material considerations as set out in Section 7. 
 
2. This application has been assessed against the Council's adopted planning policy in the form 

of the Plymouth and South West Devon Joint Local Plan (March 2019) policies SO1 

Page 21



 

 

(Delivering the spatial strategy), SO11 (Delivering high quality development), SPT1 
(Delivering sustainable development), SPT2 (Sustainable linked neighbourhoods and 
sustainable rural communities), SPT3 (Provision for new homes), SPT12 (Strategic approach 
to the natural environment), DEV1 (Protecting health and amenity), DEV2 (Air, water, soil, 
noise, land and light), DEV7 (Meeting local housing need in the Plymouth Policy Area), DEV9 
(Meeting local housing need in the Plan Area), DEV10 (Delivering high quality housing), 
DEV20 (Place shaping and the quality of the built environment), DEV23 (Landscape 
character), DEV26 (Protecting and enhancing biodiversity and geological conservation), 
DEV27 (Green and play spaces), DEV28 (Trees, woodlands and hedgerows), DEV29 (Specific 
provisions relating to transport), DEV32 (Delivering low carbon development) and DEV35 
(Managing flood risk and water quality impacts).  

 
3. The main issues relating to this development proposal are considered to be the principle of 

development, design, layout, amenity, biodiversity and trees, highways, contamination, flood 
risk and drainage. 

 
4. The application is a re-submission of planning permission 22/00651/FUL which sought 

permission for the erection of 4 dwellings together with construction of vehicular access. 
Application 22/00651/FUL was a further re-submission of an earlier application 17/02055/FUL 
for a similar planning permission with some amendments but was not commenced and had 
since lapsed. Application 22/00651/FUL was refused due to insufficient information being 
submitted relating to protected species and biodiversity net gain.  

 
5. This re-submitted application has provided an updated Ecological Impact Assessment (EcIA) in 

response to the reason for refusal that included a number of protected species surveys. 
Details were also provided on biodiversity net gain.   

 
6. The resubmission also has made further amendments in response to the comments made 

with the previous application to the external building materials, landscaping and boundary 
treatment. The supporting information states this is to ensure that the proposed 
development enhances its landscape setting.  

 
7. Plot 4 is proposed to be constructed by the applicant as a self-build dwelling. 
 
Principle of Development 
8. As outlined above, planning application 961/64 for the erection of 34 semi-detached dwellings 

and an access road was granted in 1964. Eight of the dwellings were constructed forming 
Petersfield Close. Along with part of the access road and underground infrastructure for the 
development. Planning permission was granted in 2015 for a replacement dwelling on land 
adjacent to No. 29 Petersfield Close on one of the plots of the 1964 consent, which has since 
been constructed.  

 
9. A similar proposal under application 17/02055/FUL sought permission for the erection of four 

dwellings and a linked annex on site and was granted permission. The pre-commencement 
conditions attached to this consent were never discharged and the consent lapsed in 2020. 
As this consent has lapsed it does not form a fall-back position. Thus, the previous approval 
has limited weight.  

 
10. Recent planning history as outlined above, notes the historic extant planning permission as a 

material consideration when determining applications for residential development. The 
Planning Inspectorate in a 2007 appeal (relating to No. 28 Petersfield Close) noted that the 
extant planning permission provided a 'relevant fall-back position' when considering the 
principle of further residential development (planning reference 07/01006/FUL).   

Page 22



 

 

 
11. To support the application the applicant provided a legal opinion on the relevance of the 

fallback position with regard to the extant planning permission. The summary of the 
submitted legal opinion is as follows: 
(i) The principle of developing the Application Site to deliver 6 dwellings has already been 

established.  
(ii) There is a reasonable prospect that, in the event that the current application is 

unsuccessful, the Application Site will be developed for 6 dwellings pursuant to the 
Extant Permission. No further reports or surveys are required before the Extant 
Scheme can be completed.  

(iii) A comparison must be made between the proposed development and the fall-back 
use. The impacts of the development should, therefore, be assessed having regard to 
the planning and ecological baseline presented by the Extant Scheme.  

(iv) The development of the Application Site pursuant to application 22/00651/FUL would 
result in fewer adverse impacts than the development of the site for the Extant 
Scheme. The proposed development is preferable in terms of design, layout, traffic 
generation, biodiversity and sustainability.  

(v) Therefore, there are no sound planning reasons why application reference 
22/00651/FUL should be refused.  

 
12. The legal opinion was considered by the Council's Legal Department who stated: 

"We have now considered the advice provided by Clarke Willmott in detail and note its 
content. The relevant historical documents have been reviewed again and it is confirmed that 
the Local Planning Authority have set out its position in relation to the extant permission and 
this position remains." 

 
13. The Council has previously confirmed that the previous 1964 planning consent was extant 

and, as such, this still remains the Council's view.  
 
14. Officers consider that the extant planning permission provides a material fall-back position 

when considering the principle of further residential development within Petersfield Close. 
Officers acknowledge the site sits within a well-established residential area and consider the 
principle of further residential dwellings in this location to be acceptable, subject to the 
development conforming to the national and local policy, as set out below. 

 
15. Without the extant planning permission it is noted that the Council has a five year housing 

land supply and is seeking to direct development to brownfield sites or those allocated within 
the Plan. Policy SPT1 sets out the overall sustainable development objectives of the Plan.  
Point 3i, seeks to reduce the need for greenfield development and protect natural assets by 
optimising the re-use of previously developed sites. Additionally, the protection of greenfield 
sites from unnecessary development is given increased weight in the context of the climate 
change emergency, given the role of greenfield sites not only in capturing carbon but also 
providing more resilience to extreme weather events. 

 
16. The proposal may therefore be considered to be in conflict with SPT1, but in this case, the 

notable fallback position of the extant planning permission is considered to hold considerable 
weight. 

 
Proposed Layout 
17. The application proposes to construct four detached dwellings and vehicular access. Three of 

the dwellings would be located to the north of the access road and due to the topography of 
the site would appear two storey at street level but are four storey when viewed from the 
rear.  

Page 23



 

 

 
18. To the south of the access road a single dwelling which is proposed to be three storeys. It is 

noted that the approved dwelling under application 15/02050/FUL adjacent to No.29 
Petersfield Close is a detached three storey dwelling. The four dwellings will each be 
provided with outdoor private amenity space and off street parking (driveways and garages).  

 
19. The existing properties on Petersfield Close are mostly two storey, semi-detached properties 

with varying heights due to the topography of the area. The properties south of the 
application site on Higher Mowles are semi-detached dwellings that appear like bungalows 
when viewed from street level but are largely two storey dwellings with some three storey 
dwellings.  The properties to the north of the site on Eggbuckland Road are two storey 
terraced properties when view from the street level but three storey when viewed from the 
rear.  

 
20. The site plan for the extant planning permission has been submitted with this application and 
shows that the access road continues along Petersfield Close and has pairs of semi-detached 
properties to the north and south of the access road. There was a clear building line set.  
 
21. The proposed layout would follow the same access road as the extant permission but would 
replace the six dwellings proposed to the eastern end of the site with the four proposed. The 
proposal also includes relocating the turning head which would overlap a further two plots on the 
northern side of the site, but due to the size of the plots these could still be developed for housing 
subject to a future planning application and amendments to the design and positioning. The extant 
permission plots to the west of the single dwelling to the south would all still be achievable. 
 
22. Officers consider the overall layout is acceptable given the nature of the extant permission 

and site constraints. 
 
Design 
23. The NPPF states that good design is a key aspect of sustainable development, creates better 

places in which to live and work and helps make development acceptable to communities. 
 
24. The Government's National Design Guide (2019) sets out that "well-designed places are: 

- based on a sound understanding of the features of the site and the surrounding 
context, using baseline studies as a starting point for design;  

- integrated into their surroundings so they relate well to them;  
- influenced by and influence their context positively; and 

 
25. The National Design Guide sets out that "well-designed new development is integrated into 

its wider surroundings, physically, socially and visually." 
 
26. Turning to local plan policy, Policy DEV10 sets out that housing development should be of 

high quality in terms of its design and that developments should be designed to be integrated 
with the adjacent developments and not appear to be unrelated additions.  This is to be 
achieved in the quality of the building design, materials and layout. 

 
27. Policy DEV20 relates to place shaping and the quality of the built environment.  This sets out 

that development will be required to meet good standards of design, contributing positively 
to both townscape and landscape as well as protect and improve the quality of the built 
environment.  This should be through, using materials and design solutions that are resilient 
to their context and will endure over time.  Regard to the pattern of development and the 
wider context in terms of style and local distinctiveness should also be considered.  As should 
the layout, orientation, visual impact, views, scale, massing, height, density, materials, detailing, 

Page 24



 

 

historic value, landscaping and character, and the demands for movement to and from nearby 
locations. 

 
28. The proposed design shows modern and contemporary design that responds to the sloping 

topography of the site. The proposed single dwelling at plot four is positioned to the south of 
the access road and is proposed to be a self-build dwelling, constructed by the applicant. The 
dwelling would be three storeys and steps up the site with a single storey rear elevation. 

 
29. The proposed three dwellings (plots 1-3) to the north appear to be two storey from the 

access road level but step down a further two floors to the north, appearing as a three storey 
building with a recessed fourth floor.  

 
30. The submitted details state that the houses have a bespoke design that responds to the 

sloping topography of the site and the surrounding landscape context. 
 
31. The form and massing of each dwelling reflects the ground levels with the roof ridges 

stepping down the slope. 
 
32. The following materials palette has been proposed;- 

- Roof - Standing seam roof covering, sedum roof. 
- Walls- Beige smooth render, standing seam cladding, natural timber cladding  
- Rain water goods - aluminium rainwater goods.  
- Windows & doors - aluminium windows and doors, frameless glass balustrading 
- Vehicle access - 'no dig' grass system for the road, pavement and driveway 

 
33. The Urban Design Officer raised an objection with the previously refused application, stating 

previously that they can support a contemporary architectural design but advised that the 
design should nestle into the landscape to minimise the impact, should be as green as possible 
and maximise green features. 

 
34. Amendments have been made following the comments from the Urban Design Team with the 

previously refused application, which include changing the external walls of the dwellings from 
white render to a beige render, change the Cedral cladding to a natural timber cladding. They 
also include changing the road, pavement and driveway surface from ashphalt to a 
Geosynthetics "Cellweb no dig" system with pre-grown, mature grass.  

 
35. The proposal includes landscaping amendments which include additional native trees, shrubs 

and climbing plants. The generic grass bank to plot 4 is being replaced with a green wall bank 
with a mixture of ferns, flowering and climbing plants. Replacing the timber fencing boundary 
treatment with a curving hedge for plots 1 to 3, with swale drainage located behind it. The 
previous proposal included the use of masonry walls clad in smooth white render for 
planters, retaining wall and for the stairs. However the proposal now seeks to move planting 
to ground level with galvanised steel railings where possible, to increase visibility of the 
greenery and reduce the overall amount of render.  

 
36. The Urban Design Officer has considered the submitted scheme and acknowledges the 

changes made but still objects to the proposal. They have stated "the proposal's  site layout 
needs to be amended to provide overlooking and therefore natural surveillance to the access 
road, which will otherwise feel unsafe.  The layout also needs to be amended to safeguard 
against future residential development to the east, encroaching further into the woodland.  
With these issues in mind, a dwelling should be placed at the head of the cul-de-sac facing 
west - terminating the vista along the access road, and providing natural surveillance over it". 

 

Page 25



 

 

37. The officer is mindful that the layout is similar to that of the extant planning permission. It is 
therefore considered that while amending the layout would help provide natural surveillance 
over the access road, it is not a reason to refuse this application given the previous layout of 
the extant planning permission. Furthermore, development to the east would need to be the 
subject of a separate permission although officers note that this land is not covered by the 
extant permission and is designated as City Green Space and is therefore not likely to be 
acceptable. 

 
38. The Urban Design Officer also raised concerns that the proposed street frontage is 

dominated by car parking hard-standings and garages. Officers are however mindful that this 
is common within Petersfield Close due to the topography of the area. 28 Petersfield Close 
has also previously been approved with the ground floor garage. A recent application at land 
adjacent to 28 Petersfield Close (21/01071/FUL) also proposed a garage at ground level on 
the street frontage which was considered acceptable in design terms.  

 
39. The Urban Designers have raised concerns regarding the proposed heights of the buildings 

and consider them too tall. The proposal seeks to provide three 4 storey buildings and one 3 
storey building. The Officer is mindful that the existing buildings are largely two storeys in 
height however a three storey property has previously been allowed at 28 Petersfield Close. 
Plots 1 to 3 are four storey properties, but due to the topography of the site will appear two 
storey at street level with the top floor being recessed. While Petersfield Close does not 
have any four storey properties it is noted that due to the sloping nature of the site four 
storeys can be accommodated, furthermore, it is noted that the dwellings are located some 
distance from other properties in the street and will be screened by existing planting and 
trees that will be retained.  Officers do not therefore consider that the properties will appear 
overly dominant within the street scene or wider landscape context.  

 
40. The Urban Design Officer has acknowledged that the change in colour to the render would 

not accent the buildings against the green-space as strongly but considers it not to be the 
best choice in terms of integrating subtly within the woodland context.  

 
41. The Urban Design Officer also recognises the reduction in the use of rendered walls 

surrounding the planting at ground level, stating it would be an improvement but suggests 
that the railings be amended to natural stone walls to better integrate within the landscape 
context. It is however considered by the Officer that the use of the railings would increase 
visibility of the greenery, which would also assist with integrating the development within the 
landscape.  

 
42. The Cedral fibre-cement weatherboarding previously proposed in the refused scheme has 

now been replaced with western red cedar natural timber boarding, which the Urban Design 
Officers considered to be an improvement and is a more contextually appropriate response 
to the woodland setting. The Urban Design Officers also support the use of the sedum roof, 
the green water-permeable cellular surface to replace the tarmac and the additional tree 
planting adjacent to the street.  

 
43. The officer has carefully considered the comments by the Urban Design Officer and 

proposed amendments and design of the proposal. The officer considers that the proposed 
changes from the previously refused planning application would assist  in the proposed 
dwellings appearing more integrated within the woodland context and help towards 
mitigating the proposals visual impact. The proposed dwellings are a contemporary and 
modern design that has considered the topography of the site and surrounding environment 
by retaining landscape features such as trees and reinforcing the eastern boundary with new 
planting. The proposed dwellings would not be situated immediately adjacent to any 

Page 26



 

 

neighbouring properties and therefore there is no clear existing street-scene. It is therefore 
considered that the design of the proposed development is, on balance, acceptable. 

 
Occupant Amenity 
44. All the proposed dwellings have internal (218m² to 310m²) and external amenity space 

(137m²to 170m²) that accords with the SPD and the Nationally Described Space Standards. 
All habitable rooms are considered to be a sufficient size for daily activities and are served by 
a window to allow natural light. 

 
45. Overall, the proposal presents an acceptable level of amenity for future occupants, in line 

with Policy DEV10 of the Joint Local Plan.  
 
Neighbouring Amenity 
46. Due to the proposals location away from neighbouring residential properties on Petersfield 

Close, separation from the properties to the north by Eggbuckland Road and being set below 
the properties to the south due to the topography of the area it is considered that the 
proposal would not have a detrimental impact on neighbouring residential properties privacy, 
outlook or access to sunlight.  

 
47. Due to the difficult site access, the construction phase of any approved dwellings must be 

carefully planned and managed. Hours of working must be strictly adhered to in order to 
prevent unnecessary nuisance. These details could be secured through the submission of a 
code of practice which could be conditioned.  

 
48. With the addition of conditions as outlined above, Officers consider the proposal complies 

with Policies DEV1 and DEV2 of the Joint Local Plan 2019.   
 
Local Highways Authority 
49. The Local Highway Authority are unable to support the proposal due to the extremely steep 

estate road from Eggbuckland Road leading to the site,  inadequate visibility splays,  and 
failure to provide reasonable access for all road users.  

 
50. The Local Highway Authority have considered the planning history relating to the site and 

state that the responses remain relevant to this proposal concluding that the access 
arrangement with Eggbuckland Road is potentially hazardous. 

 
51. As outlined in the planning history above, planning application 07/01006/FUL for a detached 

house with integral garage was refused. This application was dismissed at appeal. However, 
the Inspector considered that the extant permission for 34 dwellings, which included the 
application site, was of such weight that despite the inadequacy of the junction between 
Petersfield Close and Eggbuckland Road refusing the application on the sub-standard road 
junction carried little weight. 

 
52. The Inspector stated that "permission for 34 dwellings on Petersfield Close remains extant 

following the start of development by the building of the existing houses, so that this is a 
relevant fallback position for the appellants. The Council states that its transport officers have 
consistently resisted proposals for development "over and above the existing consent" and 
that, as no development has taken place for many years, this objection is maintained. 
However, it is clear to [the Inspector] that the proposed house occupies one of the plots 
within the extant permission and does not add to the existing permission. In these 
circumstances, this reason for refusal carries little weight". 

 

Page 27



 

 

53. As the proposal seeks consent for four dwellings over 6 plots from the extant planning 
permission, the proposal would not add to the existing permission and the Local Highway 
Authorities reason for refusal remains to carry little weight.  

 
54. Each dwelling is considered to have sufficient parking and any garages would be suitable for 

cycle storage. Appropriate facilities would also be provided for EV charging in line with 
current requirements. Therefore, officers consider the development complies with the Joint 
Local Plan SPD and policy DEV20 of the Joint Local Plan. 

 
Ecology and Biodiversity 
 
Ecological Impact 
55. This site is adjacent to City Green Space (Efford Cemetery), this green space is also linked to 

Efford Marsh County Wildlife Site (CWS) and Efford Marsh Local Nature Reserve. The site 
covers an area of a Biodiversity Network Feature (Woodland to North of Efford Cemetery). 
This site is adjacent to Forder Valley Wooded Valley and Efford Marsh Landscape Character 
Area.  

 
56. The previous application on site was refused for the following reason: 

Insufficient information in the form of protected species surveys have been provided. As such, 
it is not possible to conclude that the development will not have an adverse effect on 
protected species. Furthermore, inadequate information has been submitted to evidence that 
the development would achieve a biodiversity net gain. Taking a precautionary approach, the 
application is deemed contrary to the requirements set out in JLP Policy DEV26, the 
Plymouth and SW Devon SPD and the NPPF. 

 
57. The NI Team previously advised that the submitted details were missing key information such 

as baseline surveys and justifiable scale of ecological impacts. The Natural Infrastructure Team 
therefore recommended that the application be withdrawn and the further details be 
submitted such as additional surveys and BNG calculations.  

 
58. A revised Ecological Impact Assessment (EcIA) has been submitted to support the application 

and in response to the reason for refusal for the previous application and the concerns raised 
by the Natural Infrastructure (NI) Team. The EcIA considers  and assesses the perceived 
ecological impacts associated with the proposal, including any perceived impacts to legally 
protected species or legally protected habitats and opportunities to provide biodiversity 
enhancements.  

 
59. To inform the assessment a number of surveys were concluded on site which included 

botanical/habitat surveys, bat activity, badger surveys and breeding bird and reptile surveys. 
 
60. The EcIA states that the application site supports the following habitats: 

o Amphibians: The mixed scrub and woodland are likely to provide terrestrial habitat 
for common amphibians;  

o Bat feeding & dispersal: The woodland strips and woodland edges to the trackway 
vegetation provide sheltered flight lines for bat species tolerant of urban and urban 
fringe habitats. The mixed scrub provides foraging habitat for a moderate level of 
predominantly common bat species;  

o Birds: The boundary woodland strips, mixed scrub and grassland provide feeding 
habitat, with the woodland strips and mixed scrub providing nesting habitat, for bird 
species typical of urban and urban fringe habitats;  

o Reptiles: The grassland, mixed scrub and woodland edge are likely to provide 
transitional habitat for reptiles;  

Page 28



 

 

o Badger: No badger setts were identified within the site. However, an outlier sett is 
present outside the site boundary. The site provides foraging and commuting habitat 
for badger;  

o Invertebrates: The grassland, scrub and woodland vegetation will provide habitat for a 
range of invertebrate species typical of urban and urban fringe habitats; and,  

o Non-Native Invasive Botanical Species: The site includes non-native invasive botanical 
species.  

 
61. The EcIA states that in the absence of mitigation measures, the proposed development is 

considered to have, at worst, long-term, adverse impact at the local/parish level through 
removal of scrub and grassland habitat, including removal of habitat for feeding and dispersing 
bats, and feeding and nesting birds. 

 
62. The EcIA includes avoidance, mitigation, compensation and enhancement measures which 

include: 
- Grassland management; 
- Vegetation clearance schedule; 
- Post clearance inspection; 
- Nesting bird check; 
- Hedge and tree protective fencing; 
- Pollution prevention; 
- Non-native Invasive species removal; 
- Restrictions on external lighting during the construction phase.  
- Retention of woodland strips; 
- Woodland management; 
- Habitat piles; 
- Hedgebank planting; 
- Hedge management; 
- Screening of badger sett; 
- Habitat creation; 
- Green roofs; 
- Inbuilt bat, bird and invertebrate provisions; 
- Ecologist compliance monitoring visits. 

 
63. The report concludes that through the implementation of the ecology impact 

avoidance/mitigation and enhancement measures the proposal would represent a significant 
ecological improvement when compared to the existing extant planning permission for the 
site.  

 
64. The Natural Infrastructure (NI) Team have considered the submitted details and are 

objecting to the proposal. The NI Team have raised concerns regarding the adequacy of the 
information submitted stating that the information: 
- Provides a poor evaluation of the site's value for biodiversity i.e. lacking qualitative and 

quantitative (measurable) data on habitats and species present, 
- Poor assessment of impact - currently too generic and vague, 
- Lack of clarity and certainty over the proposed design of the compensation and 

enhancements and how they will be delivered and maintained, 
 
65. The NI Team have highlighted that the proposed development would result in a loss of 80% 

of the existing habitat on site, which would have an impact on species using the site. The NI 
Team have therefore stated that the potential impacts on protected species have not been 
adequately addressed, nor appropriately mitigated. They continued by saying that the scheme 

Page 29



 

 

does not avoid or mitigate for impacts on species using the site and should therefore be 
recommended for refusal. 

 
66. In response to the adequacy of the ecological information submitted the applicant advised 

that the standard survey protocol has been used for the habitats and species present and 
accords with BS42020 and CIEEM guidance. The applicant has advised that the submitted 
EcIA has been undertaken by a qualified ecologist who has carried out appropriate surveys at 
the correct time of year, in accordance with the relevant standards and good practice 
guidance and that avoidance, compensation and enhancement measures have been 
incorporated into the development, included within the proposed plans and can be 
appropriately secured by planning condition. 

 
67. The applicant has provided the following points to provide further clarity on the impact on 

protected species:  
 
68. Amphibians 

o These species are legally protected from being offered for sale only. They are not of 
conservation concern and the amphibians themselves, and their habitat, is not legally 
protected. 

o The Ecological Impact Assessment (EcIA) report includes 'good practice' 
recommendations in relation to the clearance of vegetation in order to 
allow/encourage prior dispersal of amphibians away from the working areas. 

o The development will remove an extent of scrub habitat. The development will retain 
an extent of scrub/woodland and established woodland habitat, and will create new 
habitats including swales, hedgerow and habitat piles. 

o Consequently, the development, although removing an extent of habitat, will not 
contravene any legislation relating to amphibians and is not perceived to have a 
significant negative impact upon amphibians. 

 
69. Reptiles 

o These species are legally protected from being intentionally killed or harmed. These 
species are not of conservation concern and their unintentional harm, and their 
habitat, is not legally protected. 

o As set out above, no reptiles were recorded during the site survey. 
o Currently, the site is becoming less suitable for reptiles due to the regrown as scrub 

habitat, which has become dense and is transitioning further towards woodland. 
o The development will remove an extent of scrub habitat. The development will retain 

an extent of scrub/woodland and established woodland habitat, and create new 
habitats including swales, hedgerow and habitat piles.  

o Consequently, the development, although removing an extent of habitat, will not 
contravene any legislation relating to reptiles and is not perceived to have a significant 
negative impact upon reptiles. 

 
70. Birds 

o Birds that currently use the site are typical of green spaces (e.g. gardens, parks, 
wooded areas etc.) encapsulated by urban habitats. 

o The nests of these species are afforded legal protection from damage while the nest is 
in active use (i.e. from the commencement of nest building, until all the young have 
fledged). 

o The EcIA report includes 'good practice' recommendations in relation to the 
clearance of vegetation outside of the bird nesting season, or following a nesting bird 
check by a professional ecologist which confirms an absence of active nest sites (and 
an active nests to be protected accordingly until nesting is complete). 

Page 30



 

 

 
o The development will remove an extent of scrub habitat. The development will retain 

an extent of scrub/woodland and established woodland habitat, and create new 
habitats including swales, hedgerow and habitat piles. The reduction of scrub will 
incrementally reduce approximately 1 to 2 nesting territories for species such as 
robin, blackbird and wren. The new hedgerow may replace 1 nesting territory for 
each of the species listed. 

o The development will include inbuilt nesting provisions: at least two per each 
residential unit (the EcIA also states one per building, allowing for provisions to be 
spaced and incorporated into dwellings, garages etc. as required). This will create 
nesting sites for species of conservation concern associated with building nest sites 
such as house sparrow and starling. 

o Consequently, the development, although removing an extent of habitat, will not 
contravene any legislation relating to birds and is not perceived to have a significant 
negative impact upon birds. 

 
71. Bats 

o A bat activity survey was undertaken, which identified bat species and corresponding 
level of use. The assessment of this survey and corresponding raw data was provided 
within the EcIA. 

o Bat roosts and 'important' bat habitats are legally protected. 'Important bat habitats' 
are protected through supplementary planning guidance (SPD) and/or consultation 
zones, such as the 'South Hams SAC greater horseshoe bat SPD' or the 'Beer Quarry 
& Caves SAC Guidance'. 

o No bat roosts are present and the bat activity survey identified bat species and the 
level of use was typical for the encapsulated green space.  

o Consequently, the development will (1) not impact upon important bat habitat, (2) 
will not cause a disturbance to, or significantly impact bat populations, and (3) will not 
contravene any legislation relating to bats. 

o The EcIA report includes 'good practice' recommendations in relation to the 
retention of peripheral woodland, creation of a new boundary hedge and restriction 
of external lighting, in order to main an extent of feeding habitat and dispersal 
flightlines surrounding the development. 

o The development will include inbuilt roosting provisions: at least two per each 
residential unit (the EcIA also states one per building, allowing for provisions to be 
spaced and incorporated into dwellings, garages etc. as required). 

o Consequently, the development, although removing an extent of habitat, will not 
contravene any legislation relating to bats and is not perceived to have a significant 
negative impact upon bats. 

 
72. Badger 

o The survey identified a badger sett outside, but within close proximity to the redline 
boundary. 

o Badgers are legally protected from disturbance whilst within a set, and a badger sett is 
legally protected from damage or destruction. 

o Accordingly, the EcIA includes precautions and protective measures to ensure 
badger/s are not disturbed, and the badger sett is not damaged.  

o Consequently, the development will not contravene any legislation relating to badgers 
and is not perceived to have a significant negative impact upon badgers. 

 
73. While the concerns by the NI Team have been carefully considered by the Officer it is 

considered that the applicant has submitted sufficient information to demonstrate that that 
there would be no direct harm to protected species. When compared to the fallback position 

Page 31



 

 

the previous consent has a legal requirement under legislation such as the Wildlife & 
Countryside Act 1981 to consider protected species. The fallback position would have a legal 
requirement therefore when clearing the site to ensure that vegetation is cleared following a 
nesting bird check by suitably qualified ecologist (if cleared within the nesting bird season), 
vegetation clearance schedule and pollution prevention. The submitted EcIA however will 
secure avoidance and mitigation of the ecological impacts such as grassland management, 
hedge and tree protective fencing. The fallback position will not result in any ecology 
compensation and enhancement measures being secured, however the current application 
would secure measures such as retention of woodland strips, habitat piles, hedgerow planting 
and management, inbuilt bat, bird and invertebrate provisions and ecologists compliance 
monitoring visits.  

 
74. It is therefore considered that the submitted ecological information provides enough 

information to determine this application, with added conditions, would ensure the 
development would not cause direct harm to protected species. It is considered that with 
added conditions the proposal would provide mitigation for protected species when 
compared with the fallback position. It is therefore considered that the information, on 
balance, and is acceptable in ecology terms.   

 
Biodiversity Net Gain (BNG) 
75. The applicant has submitted a report that compares BNG habitat scores between the 

proposed scheme and the extant planning permission during the course of this application. 
The report states that the Small Sites Metric calculates the extant planning permission to 
represent 0.881 habitat units and 0 hedgerow units.  The Small Sites Metric calculates the 
proposed site plan associated with application 22/00651/FUL to represent 1.2835 habitat 
units and 0.6025 hedgerow units. The report concludes that the increased post-development 
habitat unit site score for the proposed site plan (22/01994/FUL) represents a gain of 45% 
when compared to the post-development habitat unit site score for the extant planning 
permission. The increased post-development hedgerow unit site score for the proposed site 
plan (22/01994/FUL) can not be expressed as a percentage change (as no hedgerow planting 
is associated with the extent planning permission). The increase of 0.6025 hedgerow units is 
represented by the post-development layout including 90 m of new hedgerow. 

 
76. The NI Team however do not agree with the calculations submitted by the applicant and 

have stated that by undertaking their own assessment that the current scheme will result in 
almost the same loss of habitat as the extant planning permission. Based on the evidence 
submitted with the application, the NI Team have stated that the proposed development 
does not adequately mitigate or compensate for biodiversity loss on site, and consequently 
does not achieve a measurable net gain or enhancement for biodiversity as required by JLP 
Policy DEV26. 

 
77. The SPD acknowledges that Policy DEV26 of the JLP refers to biodiversity net gain in terms 

of major development, the proposal is however not a major development. Nonetheless, the 
SPD states that biodiversity net gain will be encouraged for minor development and that 
developments should deliver proportionate and measurable biodiversity net gain or 
enhancements.  

 
78. Officers are mindful that the extant planning permission offers a fallback position, 

acknowledged by the Inspector of the recent appeal decision who stated "it is acknowledged 
that the extant permission represents a fallback position. I accept that there is a greater than 
theoretical possibility that the fallback position could be constructed in the event that this 
appeal was dismissed". The extant planning permission was not required to provide 
biodiversity net gain and no BNG calculations were required to be submitted on applications 

Page 32



 

 

at the time of the previous consent. While there is a disagreement between the applicant and 
the NI Team about the amount of net gain being proposed when compared to the extent 
planning permission, the worst case scenario is the extant and current scheme would result 
in the same biodiversity impact. However, the current scheme would be able secure the 
mitigation measures through condition which was not possible with the extant planning 
permission. It is therefore considered on balance that the proposal is acceptable in 
biodiversity terms. 

 
Trees and Woodlands  
79. This site is adjacent to a woodland TPO (number 537) which also covers the area of access 

road shown on this application. The application site has largely been cleared leaving minimal 
trees on site.  

 
80. An Arboricultural Impact Assessment including tree survey, tree constraints plan and tree 

protection plan has been submitted to support the application.  
 
81. The tree report outlines impacts on trees and includes details of trees to be removed and 

retained. It appears that just T269 is to be removed. This is a group of 2 trees (sycamore) 
and so in line with the SPD will need to be replaced with at least 6 trees. The Natural 
Infrastructure Team have reviewed the submitted details and have no objection to the 
proposal from an arboricultural view point. The proposal includes the provision of 6 new 
trees to be planted on site, therefore it is considered that the proposal complies with policy 
DEV28.  

 
Habitat Regulations Assessment 
82. Having concluded that the application will have a likely significant effect in the absence of 

avoidance and mitigation measures on the European and Internationally protected sites, this 
represents the authorities Appropriate Assessment as Competent Authority in accordance 
with requirements under Regulation 63 of the Conservation of Habitats and Species 
Regulations 2017, Article 6(3) of the Habitats Directive and having due regard to its duties 
under Section 40(1) of the NERC Act 2006 to the purpose of conserving biodiversity. 
Consideration of the Ramsar site/s is a matter of government policy set out in the National 
Planning Policy Framework 2021.  

 
83. The authority has concluded that the adverse effects arising from the proposal are wholly 

consistent with and inclusive of the effects detailed in the Tamar Estuary Estuaries 
Management Plan and the Yealm Estuary Environmental Management Plan. The authority's 
assessment is that the application complies with this strategy and that it can therefore be 
concluded that there will be no adverse effect on the integrity of the designated sites 
identified above.  

 
Contamination 
84. An appropriate Phase 1 Contamination report was submitted prepared by ASI Ltd 

(Ref:A1303/P1/JW Dated: 20th July 2017). The report states that the only potential risk could 
be from the migration of landfill gas. The report recommends that a Landfill Gas assessment 
be undertaken to identify if the site is at possible risk and recommend a course of action to 
mitigate such risk. A Landfill Gas Risk Assessment (ref 07-017-001, dated 25 January 2022) 
was submitted that provided recommendations. A condition will be added to ensure that the 
development complies with these recommendation. 

 
85. The Public Protection Service state that the uncovering of the tractor trailer raises some 

concerns over possible buried farming machinery and although the report states no engine or 

Page 33



 

 

potential contamination was identified a condition to cover any unexpected contamination 
will be required. 

 
86. The Public Protection Service have also raised that they have received a number of 

complaints over the last few years regarding burning on site. The applicant is reminded that 
all waste produced in the course of this development needs to be removed from site via an 
approved method and disposed of legally, including wood. Waste documents need to be kept 
for 2 years by law and can be demanded at any point by Local Authority. Waste must not be 
burnt on site. A Construction Environment Management Plan was submitted stating that 
working hours will be Monday to Friday 08:00 - 18:00, Saturday 08:00 - 13:00 and no work 
on Sundays. A condition will ensure works comply with the submitted management plan.   

 
Drainage 
87. The application site is situated in a low flood risk zone (zone 1) but is located in a Critical 

Drainage Area.  
 
88. A Drainage Flood Risk Assessment has been submitted for the development that concludes 

the site is at a low risk from fluvial, tidal and surface water flooding.  
 
89. Due to the topography of the site, infiltration drainage has been dismissed. The proposed 

surface water drainage strategy is to discharge surface water to an existing SWW surface 
water sewer at an attenuated rate. The proposed connection is described as being to the east 
of the site. 

 
90. An attenuation storage tank is proposed measuring 4.8m x 1.8m x 1.26m deep situated to the 

rear of Plot 2, with a proposed attenuated discharge rate of 0.7l/s. Modelling results have 
been submitted to support the proposed design with a design standard of 1 in 100 year 
return period with a 40% allowance for climate change.  

 
91. The Lead Local Flood Authority have considered the submitted details and have  objected to 

the proposal asking that details of the proposed connection should be submitted to confirm 
the proposed surface water receiving sewer is available. Public sewer records indicate there 
are no SWW surface water sewers to the east of the site and that the proposed discharge 
rate of 0.7l/s, previously agreed with SWW should be maintained.  

 
92. The applicant provided further details stating the sewer network within the application site 

was installed in the 1970s as part of the extant planning permission and provided a photo of 
plan from 1971 showing combined and surface water drains connecting to the existing sewer 
system to the north of the site and a letter dated from 1978 stating that sewer had been 
inspected. The applicant also highlighted that when the site was purchased they asked SWW 
to survey the existing drainage and following the survey SWW provided a plan for the sewer 
network which is included within the Flood Risk Assessment.  

 
93. The LLFA considered the submitted details and have stated that they are happy to agree to a 

condition that requires the following details to be submitted to and agreed: 
- Confirmation is provided by the applicant to confirm approval from the private sewer 

owner, for the proposed connection to the private sewer and to confirm that the 
sewer has the required capacity to receive the proposed discharge,  

- Or if this approval is not given or the sewer does not have capacity, that the applicant 
will enter into an agreement with South West Water to connect into the Public 
Sewerage system in accordance with and as set out in the South West Water 
response. 

 

Page 34



 

 

94. The Officer notes that the correspondence with SWW states that they will accept the 
proposed drainage proposal provided that the applicant ensures that the sites surface water 
connects to one of the public surface water sewers which flow northwards (North of 
Eggbuckland Road) and the discharge rate for the surface water is no more than 0.7 l/sec. The 
Officer therefore considers the submitted drainage details are acceptable in principle subject 
to the recommended condition. 

 
Self-Build 
95. The Self and Custom Housebuilding Act 2015 (as amended by the Housing and Planning Act 

2016) places a duty on Councils to grant sufficient permissions to meet the demand 
evidenced by the number of entries on their Self Build Register for each base period.  

 
96. The SPD states that 'the LPAs will support self and custom build housing developments 

provided that they meet the requirements of other policies. This section relates to both 
market led and Affordable self and custom build housing'.  

 
Energy/Sustainability 
97. The Climate Emergency Planning Statement was adopted in November 2022 and is a material 

planning consideration. The statement applies to all applications submitted from the 1st 
December 2022. The document sets out what new development should do to make sure that 
it can mitigate for, and adapt to, the challenges of climate change. The document builds upon 
the current Building Regulation Approved Document Part L and Policy DEV32 of the Joint 
Local Plan 2019.  

 
98. A climate emergency compliance form was submitted in relation to the application. For major 

and minor applications, Mitigation Measure M1 of the Climate Emergency Planning Statement 
requires development to secure an equivalent 20% carbon saving through on site renewable 
energy generation. The baseline 'target emissions rate' (TER) should be calculated using 
SAP10 to ensure the latest carbon factors are used to create both a robust baseline for the 
proposal and to calculate the most accurate carbon savings from renewable energy. 

 
99. The submitted details indicates that the development will achieve a reduction of at least 

55.54% of carbon dioxide emissions. This far exceeds the Policy DEV32 requirement to 
reduce emissions to 20% less than required to comply with Building Regulations Part L. 

 
100. The Assessment indicates that the development will achieve the requirements of the 

mitigation and adaptation measures contained in the CEPS through the following 
interventions: 
- M1: Each proposed dwelling includes roof-mounted solar PV panels; 
- M2: Each new dwelling will have battery storage; 
- M3: Each new dwelling will be served by an air source heat pump; 
- M4: The Cedral boarding has been replaced with natural Cedar timber cladding in this 

resubmission. The timber cladding will be sustainably sourced. 
- M5: not applicable as no demolition works are required; 
- M6: The garages for each dwelling have been designed to ensure there is sufficient 

space for EV charging. EV charge points will meet the required Building Regulations; 
- M7: The site is located within the Plymouth urban area in very close proximity to bus 

stops along Eggbuckland Road and within walking distance of the amenities and 
facilities at the Higher Compton local centre. It is therefore a sustainable location. The 
proposed new access road includes footways that will connect to the existing 
footways along Petersfield Close so that there is pedestrian connectivity between the 
new houses and the surrounding area; 

- A1: Building Regulations Part O will be met to reduce the risk of overheating; 

Page 35



 

 

- A2: The site benefits from an extant planning permission which has been part 
implemented. This proposal represents an improvement to the extant scheme, 
particularly as it proposes to retain significant woodland strips (wildlife buffer areas) 
along the northern and southern boundaries which will assist with protecting soil 
resource as well as contributing towards biodiversity enhancement. 

- A3: one category C tree requires removal, all other trees will be retained and 
protected. New replacement trees are proposed. 

- A4: The proposal includes biodiversity enhancement and a landscaping scheme. 
- A5: The site have a sustainable drainage system with an attenuation system located 

underneath the access road and a large bio-attenuation swale located to the rear of 
Plots 1-3. 

- A6: A number of biodiversity enhancement measures are proposed including green 
roofs, new native species planting, tree mounted bat and kestrel boxes and in-built bat 
and bird nesting provisions 

 
101. Conditions would be imposed to ensure the development is implemented in accordance with 

the submitted information and to ensure compliance with Policy DEV32 of the JLP and the 
CEPS. 

 
Other Considerations 
102. Concerns have been raised within the public comments regarding the development resulting 

in increased security risks. The officer has carefully considered these concerns and does not 
consider that the proposed development would result in increased security risks to 
neighbouring properties. It is therefore considered that the proposal would not conflict with 
policies DEV10 and DEV20. 

 
Planning Balance 
103. The proposal is considered to be very finely balanced, however a key consideration in this 

case is the extant planning permission, which has been afforded significant weight. The 
proposed scheme would result in securing ecological mitigation and enhancements measures 
such as grassland management, removal of non-native invasive species, habitat piles, 
hedgebank planting, woodland management, inbuilt bat, bird and invertebrate provisions, will 
include renewable energy and low carbon technology such as PV panels and EV charging 
points and sustainable drainage systems. All of which would not be delivered through the 
extant planning permission. It is therefore considered that when weighing up the planning 
balance, the proposed development would secure benefits that the extant planning 
permission would not and this tips the balance in favour of supporting this proposal.  

 
9. Human Rights 
Human Rights Act - The development has been assessed against the provisions of the Human Rights 
Act, and in particular Article 1 of the First Protocol and Article 8 of the Act itself. This Act gives 
further effect to the rights included in the European Convention on Human Rights. In arriving at this 
recommendation, due regard has been given to the applicant's reasonable development rights and 
expectations which have been balanced and weighed against the wider community interests, as 
expressed through third party interests / the Development Plan and Central Government Guidance. 
 
10. Local Finance Considerations 
The Local Planning Authority has assessed that this development will attract an obligation to pay a 
financial levy under the Community Infrastructure Levy Regulations 2010 (as amended). 
 
11. Planning Obligations 
The purpose of planning obligations is to mitigate or compensate for adverse impacts of a 
development, or to prescribe or secure something that is needed to make the development 

Page 36



 

 

acceptable in planning terms.  Planning obligations can only lawfully constitute a reason for granting 
planning permission where the three statutory tests of Regulation 122 of the CIL Regulations 2010 
are met. 
 
Planning obligations are not sought due to the nature and size of proposal. 
 
12. Equalities and Diversities 
This planning application has had due regard to Section 149 of the Equality Act with regard to the 
Public Sector Equality Duty and has concluded that the application does not cause discrimination on 
the grounds of gender, race and disability.  
 
13. Conclusions and Reasons for Decision 
Officers have taken account of the NPPF and S38(6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 
2004 and concluded that when weighing up the overall benefits of the development, such as the 
provision of homes against the shortfalls, particularly in relation to the lack of biodiversity net gain, 
the proposal is a finely balanced , but the planning decision is tipped in the officers view in favour of 
conditional approval. 

 

14. Recommendation 

In respect of the application dated 13.12.2022 it is recommended to Grant Conditionally. 

 

15. Conditions / Reasons 
The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the following approved 
plans:  

  
1 CONDITION: APPROVED PLANS 

  
Site Location Plan 1396-941-0000 received 02/12/22 
Planting Plan 01 909/01 received 02/12/22 
Planting Plan 02 909/02 received 02/12/22 
Proposed Biodiversity Enhancements 1396-942-1002 Rev B received 02/12/22 
Proposed Block Plan 1396-942-1010 received 02/12/22 
Existing and Proposed Site Section AA 1396-942-1400 Rev B received 02/12/22 
Plots 1 - 3 Proposed Elevations 1396-942-1301 Rev B received 09/12/22 
Plot 4 Proposed Elevation 1396-942-1300 Rev B received 09/12/22 
Plots 1-3 Floor Layout Sheet 2 1396-942-1103 Rev B received 09/12/22 
Plots 1-3 Floor Layout Sheet 1 1396-942-1102 Rev B received 09/12/22 
Plot 4 Floor Layout Sheet 2 1396-942-1101 Rev B received 09/12/22 
Plot 4 Floor Layout Sheet 1 1396-942-1100 Rev B received 09/12/22 
Proposed Site Layout Plan 1396-942-1001 Rev E received 09/12/22 
 
Reason: 
For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of good planning, in accordance with the Plymouth & 
South West Devon Joint Local Plan 2014–2034 (2019). 
 
 2 CONDITION: COMMENCE WITHIN 3 YEARS 
 
The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of three years beginning 
from the date of this permission. 
 
 

Page 37



 

 

Reason: 
To comply with Section 51 of the Planning & Compulsory Purchase Act 2004. 
 
 3 CONDITION: DRAINAGE DETAILS 
 
PRE-COMMENCEMENT 
 
No development approved by this permission shall be commenced until the following details are 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The details shall include:  
- Confirmation is provided by the applicant to confirm approval from the private sewer owner, 

for the proposed connection to the private sewer and to confirm that the sewer has the 
required capacity to receive the proposed discharge,  

- Or if this approval is not given or the sewer does not have capacity, that the applicant will 
enter into an agreement with South West Water to connect into the Public Sewerage system 
in accordance with and as set out in the South West Water response. 

 
Prior to occupation of the site it shall be demonstrated to the satisfaction of the Local Planning 
Authority that relevant parts of the scheme have been completed in accordance with the details and 
timetable agreed. The scheme shall thereafter be managed and maintained in accordance with the 
approved details unless otherwise approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 
 
Reason:  
To reduce the risk of flooding to and from the development, and minimise the risk of pollution of 
surface water by ensuring the provision of a satisfactory surface water management and disposal 
during and after development. The drainage provisions within the development are adequately 
provided for before development commences and does not cause undue problems to the wider 
drainage infrastructure in accordance with Policy DEV35 of the Plymouth and South West Devon 
Joint Local Plan 2019 and the National Planning Policy Framework 2032. 
 
Justification: Necessary because of the essential need to ensure the drainage provisions within the 
development are adequately provided for before development commences and does not cause 
undue problems to the wider drainage infrastructure and water environment. 
 
4 CONDITION: LIGHTING DESIGN STRATEGY AND CONTROL FOR LIGHT 

SENSITIVE BIODIVERSITY 
 
PRE-COMMENCEMENT 
 
No development shall commence until a sensitive lighting scheme has been submitted and approved 
in writing by the Local Planning Authority to address light-sensitive species mitigation. The scheme 
shall ensure the following; 
i.  A drawing showing sensitive areas and/or dark corridor safe guarding areas. 
ii.  Identify areas and features on site that are particularly sensitive for bats and that are likely to 

cause disturbance in or around breeding or resting sites and foraging routes. Please note that 
the introduction of artificial light can mean species are disturbed and/or discouraged from 
using their breeding, foraging and resting places. This disturbance can constitute as an offence 
under wildlife legislation. 

iii.  Show how and where external lighting will be installed (including the provision of appropriate 
lighting contour plan and technical specifications, such as inclusion of hoods, cowls, shields 
and louvers and lighting levels below 0.5 lux), taking into account hard landscaping. Boundary 
features should remain dark and unlit at night. This should clearly demonstrate the areas to 
be lit will not negatively impact on the above species' ecology and behaviour. 

Page 38



 

 

iv.  Methods to control lighting (e.g. timer operation, passive infrared sensor (PIR), limited 
operational hours) 

 
It is recommended that a qualified lighting designer is consulted to ensure that the lighting scheme 
for the proposed development is appropriate to the setting and complies with BS 5489-1:2020. 
Furthermore, the lighting scheme should be produced in collaboration with a suitably qualified 
ecologist to ensure the lighting scheme does not affect ecology including, but not limited to, bats. 
 
The external lighting scheme shall be fully implemented in accordance with the approved details 
prior to the first occupation of the dwellings and shall be maintained thereafter. No additional 
external lighting shall be installed without prior consent from the Local Planning Authority. 
 
Reason: 
In the interests of the retention, protection and enhancement of wildlife and biological features; and 
to ensure that adequate external lighting is provided to safeguard the amenity of residents and users 
of the site, in accordance with policies DEV2, DEV10, DEV20 and DEV26 of the Plymouth and 
Southwest Devon Joint Local Plan 2014-2019 (2019) and the National Planning Policy Framework 
(2021). 
 
Justification: Necessary to safeguard the amenity of residents and users in addition to ecology. 
 
 5 CONDITION: EXTERNAL MATERIALS AND FINISHES 
 
PRE-COMMENCEMENT 
 
No development shall take place until details of the materials to be used in the construction of the 
external surfaces of the development hereby permitted have been submitted to and approved in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority. Development shall be carried out in accordance with the 
approved details. 
 
Once approved the development shall be carried out at all times in strict accordance with the 
approved details and permanently retained as such, or such other details as may subsequently be 
agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 
 
Reason: 
To ensure that the details of the proposed works comply with DEV20 of the Plymouth and South 
West Devon Joint Local Plan 2014-2034, the National Design Guide and chapter 12 of the NPPF. 
 
Justification: To ensure material details are appropriate prior to works commencing. 
 
 6 CONDITION: STREET DETAILS 
 
PRE-COMMENCEMENT 
 
No development shall take place until details of the design, layout, levels, gradients, materials and 
method of construction, street lighting and drainage of all roads and footways forming part of the 
development have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. No 
dwelling shall be occupied until that part of the service road which provides access to it has been 
constructed in accordance with the approved details. 
 
 
 
 

Page 39



 

 

Reason: 
To provide a road and footpath pattern that secures a safe and convenient environment and to a 
satisfactory standard in accordance with Policy DEV29 of the Plymouth and South West Devon 
2014-2019 (2019). 
 
Justification: Necessary to ensure that the highway infrastructure is safe prior to the commencement 
of development. 
 
 7 CONDITION: LANDSCAPE ECOLOGICAL MANAGEMENT PLAN (LEMP) 
 
PRE COMMENCEMENT 
 
A Landscape and Ecological Management Plan (LEMP) shall be submitted to and approved in writing 
by the Local Planning Authority prior to the development commencing. 
 
The content of the LEMP shall include the following; 
a) Description and evaluation of features to be managed. 
b) Ecological trends and constraints on site that might influence management. 
c) Aims and objectives of management for both the landscape elements and the biodiversity 

features. 
d) Set out maintenance operations for the first year following implementation of the scheme and 

for 
e) a further 4 years following establishment for achieving aims and objectives. 
f) Preparation of a work schedule. 
g) Body or organisation responsible for implementation of the plan. 
h) Monitoring and remedial measures. 
 
The following should be provide in addition for the management of BNG features (i.e. sedum roof 
and vegetated gardens) 
a) Detailed delivery plan for each area of mitigation including timeframes for implementation  
b) Detailed management and maintenance strategy for each area of mitigation. Please note 

biodiversity net gain (BNG) habitats must be secured for 30 years, to include continuous 
management and monitoring for this period in adherence with BS 8683 (2021). 

c) Details of the resourcing of the entire delivery strategy for net gain for biodiversity. 
 
The LEMP shall also include details of the legal and funding mechanism(s) by which the long term 
implementation of the plan will be secured by the developer with the management body(s) 
responsible for its delivery (we expect at least a 30year funding plan to be included). The plan shall 
also set out (where the results from monitoring show that conservation aims and objectives of the 
LEMP are not being met) how contingencies and/or remedial action will be identified, agreed and 
implemented so that the development still delivers the fully functioning biodiversity objectives of the 
originally approved scheme and the required Biodiversity Net Gain. The plan will be implemented in 
accordance with the approved details. 
 
Reason: 
In the interests of the retention, protection and enhancement of wildlife and features of biological 
interest and to ensure that satisfactory landscaping works are carried out, in accordance Policies 
DEV20, DEV23 & DEV26 of the Plymouth and South West Devon Joint Local Plan 2014-2034 and 
Government advice contained in the National Planning Policy Framework 2021. 
 
Justification: To ensure that a suitable scheme can be achieved prior to commencement of 
development. 
 

Page 40



 

 

 8 CONDITION: CONSTRUCTION OF DRIVEWAY 
 
PRIOR TO COMMENCMENT OF EACH DWELLING 
 
Details of the driveway (including surfacing, drainage and gradient) to serve each individual dwelling 
shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority before the 
development on that dwelling commences. The driveway to each dwelling shall be completed in 
accordance with that approval prior to the occupation of that dwelling and shall accord with the 
approved details and thereafter maintained as such. 
 
Reason: 
In order to afford safe and convenient access to the dwelling and to preserve highway safety and top 
ensure adequate parking is provided, in accordance with Policy DEV29 of the Plymouth and South 
West Devon 2014-2019 (2019) 
. 
Justification: To ensure that the development can ensure the safety of road users and pedestrians can 
be maintained. 
 
9 CONDITION: EXISTING TREE/HEDGEROWS TO BE RETAINED 

/PROTECTED 
 
In this condition "retained tree or hedgerow" means an existing tree or hedgerow which is to be 
retained in accordance with the approved plans and particulars; and paragraphs (a) and (b) below 
shall have effect until the expiration of 5 years from the commencement of development. 
 
A: No retained tree or hedgerow shall be cut down, uprooted or destroyed, nor shall any tree be 
pruned other than in accordance with the approved plans and particulars, without the written 
approval of the Local Planning Authority. Any pruning approved shall be carried out in accordance 
with BS 3998: 2010 Tree Work Recommendations. 
B: If any retained tree or hedgerow is removed, uprooted or destroyed or dies, or pruned in breach 
of (a) above in a manner which, in the opinion of the Local Planning Authority, leaves it in such a 
poor condition that it is unlikely to recover and/or attain its previous amenity value, another tree or 
hedgerow shall be planted at the same place and that tree or hedgerow shall be of such size and 
species, and shall be planted at such time, as may be specified in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority. 
C: The erection of barriers and ground protection for any retained tree or hedgerow shall be 
undertaken in accordance with the approved plans TPP-PET-22, TREE PROTECTION PLAN, 4 April 
2022 by DTC KM and in accordance with Section 6.2 of BS 5837:2012 Trees in Relation to Design, 
Demolition and Construction - Recommendations before any equipment, machinery or materials are 
brought onto the site for the purposes of the development, and shall be maintained until all 
equipment, machinery and surplus materials have been removed from the site. Nothing shall be 
stored or placed in any area fenced in accordance with this condition and the ground levels within 
those areas shall not be altered, nor shall any excavation be made, without the written consent of 
the Local Planning Authority. 
 
Reason: 
To ensure that the trees on site are protected during construction work in accordance with Policy 
DEV28 of the Plymouth and South West Devon Joint Local Plan 2014-2034 (2019) and the National 
Planning Policy Framework (2021). 
 
 
 
 

Page 41



 

 

10 CONDITION: SUSTAINABILITY 
 
PRE-OCCUPATION 
 
Unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority, the dwellings hereby approved 
shall not be occupied until the provisions set out in the approved Sustainability Statement within the 
Design and Access Statement (ref 1396_240) and the Compliance with Climate Emergency Policy 
Guidance by Avalon Planning have been delivered. The low carbon measures shall be maintained for 
the lifetime of the development. 
  
Reason: 
To ensure that the development incorporates on-site renewable energy generation to offset 
predicted carbon emissions for the development in accordance with Policy DEV32 of the Plymouth 
and Southwest Devon Joint Local Plan 2014-2034 (2019) and the National Planning Policy 
Framework (2021). 
 
11 CONDITION: LANDSCAPING 
 
PRE-OCCUPATION 
 
Unless otherwise previously agreed in writing with the Local Planning Authority, the development 
shall be carried out in strict accordance with planting plans ref: 909/01 and ref: 909/02. The works 
shall be carried out in accordance with that approval prior to the first occupation of the 
development, or in accordance with any alternative timetable agreed in writing in advance by the 
Local Planning Authority.   
Any trees or plants that, within a period of five years after planting, are removed, fail to thrive, or 
become damaged or defective, shall be replaced as soon as is reasonably practical with others of 
species, size and number as originally approved, unless the local planning Authority gives its written 
consent to any variation.  
 
Reason: 
To ensure that satisfactory landscaping works are carried out in accordance with Policy DEV23 of 
the Plymouth and South West Devon Joint Local Plan (March 2019), and relevant Central 
Government guidance contained within the NPPF. 
 
12 CONDITION: CAR PARKING PROVISION 
 
PRE-OCCUPATION 
 
The building shall not be occupied until the car parking areas shown on the approved plans have 
been drained and surfaced in accordance with the approved details, and that area shall not thereafter 
be used for any purpose other than the parking of vehicles. 
 
Reason: 
To enable vehicles used by occupiers or visitors to be parked off the public highway so as to avoid 
damage to amenity and interference with the free flow of traffic on the highway in accordance with 
Policy DEV29 of the Plymouth and South West Devon Joint Local Plan 2014-2034 (2019) and the 
National Planning Policy Framework (2021). 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 42



 

 

13 CONDITION: CYCLE PROVISION 
 
PRE-OCCUPATION 
 
The development hereby approved shall not be occupied until space has been laid out in accordance 
with the approved plan for a minimum of 4no. bicycles to be securely parked per dwelling. The 
secure area for storing bicycles shown on the approved plan shall remain available for its intended 
purpose and shall not be used for any other purpose without the prior consent of the Local Planning 
Authority. 
 
Reason: 
In order to promote cycling as an alternative to the use of private cars in accordance with policy 
DEV29 of the Plymouth & South West Devon Joint Local Plan 2014-2034 (2019). 
 
14 CONDITION: ELECTRIC VEHICLE CHARGING PROVISION 
 
PRE-OCCUPATION 
 
The development hereby approved shall not be occupied until space has been laid out within the site 
for a minimum of 1no. dedicated electric vehicle charging point per dwelling, which shall remain 
available for its intended purpose in perpetuity unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority. 
 
Reason: 
In order to promote sustainable modes of transport in accordance with Policy DEV29 of the 
Plymouth and Southwest Devon Joint Local Plan 2014-2034. 
 
15 CONDITION: BIN STORAGE 
 
PRE-OCCUPATION 
 
The development hereby approved shall not be occupied until the bin storage areas shown on 
approved plan have been made available for use. The bin storage areas shown on the approved plan 
shall remain available for their intended purpose and shall not be used for any other purpose without 
the written consent of the Local Planning Authority. Bins shall be stored in these areas at all times 
except for collection day. 
 
Reason: 
To prevent street clutter and polluting effects from poor refuse storage in accordance with policies 
DEV1, DEV2, and DEV31 of the Plymouth & South West Devon Joint Local Plan 2014-2034 (2019) 
and the National Planning Policy Framework. 
 
16 CONDITION: ECOLOGICAL MITIGATION 
 
PRE-OCCUPATION 
 
Unless otherwise previously agreed in writing with the Local Planning Authority, the development 
shall be carried out in accordance with the avoidance and mitigation measures detailed within the 
submitted Ecological Impact Assessment (EcIA) by Ecologic (ref: 161101 rev08) and associated 
landscape drawings and Mitigation and Opportunities Plan prior to the occupation of the dwellings 
hereby approved.   
 
 

Page 43



 

 

Reason: 
In the interests of the retention, protection and enhancement of wildlife and features of biological 
interest, in accordance with policies SPT11 and DEV26 of the Plymouth and South West Devon Joint 
Local Plan 2014-2034 and Government advice contained in the NPPF (2021) paragraph 174. 
 
17 CONDITION: TREE WORKS 
 
Unless otherwise previously agreed in writing with the Local Planning Authority, the development 
shall be carried out in strict accordance with the Arboricultural Impact Assessment with Constraints 
Plan and Method Statement, 4 April 2022, (AIA-PET-21) that is hereby approved. 
 
Reason: 
In the interests of the protecting trees, in accordance with Policy DEV28 of the Plymouth and 
Southwest Devon Joint Local Plan 2014-2034 (2019) and the National Planning Policy Framework 
(2021). 
 
18 CONDITION: REPORTING OF UNEXPECTED CONTAMINATION 
 
In the event that contamination is found at any time when carrying out the approved development 
that was not previously identified it must be reported in writing immediately to the Local Planning 
Authority. An investigation and risk assessment must be undertaken and where further remediation 
is necessary a remediation scheme must be prepared which is subject to the approval in writing of 
the Local Planning Authority. 
 
Reason: 
To ensure that risks from land contamination to the future users of the land and neighbouring land 
are minimised, together with those to controlled waters, property and ecological systems, and to 
ensure development can be carried out safely without unacceptable risk to workers, neighbours and 
other offsite receptors in accordance with DEV2 of the Plymouth and South West Devon Joint Local 
Plan 2014-2034. 
 
19 CONDITION: RESTRICTIONS ON PERMITTED DEVELOPMENT 
 
Notwithstanding the provisions of Article 3 and Classes A, B, C and E of Part 1, and Class A of Part 
2 to Schedule 2 of the Town and Country Planning (General Permitted Development) Order 2015 
(or any order revoking and re-enacting that Order with or without modification), no enlargements, 
improvements or other alterations, including to the roof, outbuildings and boundary treatments shall 
be constructed to and within the curtilage of the dwellings hereby approved. 
 
Reason: 
In order to protect the amenity of neighbouring dwellings, in accordance with Policies DEV1 and 
DEV20 of the Plymouth and South West Devon Joint Local Plan 2014-2034 (2019) and the National 
Planning Policy Framework (2021). 
 
20 CONDITION: CONSTRUCTION ENVIRONMENTAL MANAGEMENT PLAN 

(CEMP) 
 
Unless otherwise previously agreed in writing with the Local Planning Authority, the development 
shall be carried out in strict accordance with the Construction and Environment Management Plan 
(dated Nov 22, issue no. 5) that is hereby approved.  
 
 
 

Page 44



 

 

Reason: 
To protect the residential and general amenity of the area from any harmfully polluting effects during 
construction works, ensure the traffic impacts associated with the construction phase of the works 
do not lead to adverse impacts on the operation of the local road network, and to safeguard against 
pollution and adverse effects on the SPA and SAC and to prevent unacceptable impacts on protected 
wildlife and to avoid conflict with Policies  SPT12, DEV1, DEV2, DEV31, DEV28 and DEV29 of the 
Plymouth and South West Devon Joint Local Plan 2014-2034. 
 

 
INFORMATIVES 
 
 
1 INFORMATIVE: (CIL LIABLE) DEVELOPMENT LIABLE FOR COMMUNITY 

INFRASTRUCTURE CONTRIBUTION 
 

The Local Planning Authority has assessed that this development will attract an obligation to pay a 
financial levy under the Community Infrastructure Levy Regulations 2010 (as amended).  Details of 
the process can be found on our website at www.plymouth.gov.uk/CIL.  You can contact the Local 
Planning Authority at any point to discuss your liability calculation; however a formal Liability Notice 
will only be issued by the Local Planning Authority once "planning permission first permits 
development" as defined by the CIL Regulations.  You must ensure that you submit any relevant 
forms and get any pre-commencement details agreed before commencing work.  Failure to do so 
may result in surcharges or enforcement action. 

 
Further information on CIL can be found on our website here: 
https://www.plymouth.gov.uk/planninganddevelopment/planningapplications/communityinfrastructurel
evy 

 
More information and CIL Forms can be accessed via the Planning Portal: 
https://www.planningportal.co.uk/info/200126/applications/70/community_infrastructure_levy/5 

 
More detailed information on CIL including process flow charts, published by the Ministry of 
Housing, Local Communities and Government can also be found here: 
https://www.gov.uk/guidance/community-infrastructure-levy 

 
 2 INFORMATIVE: CONDITIONAL APPROVAL (NO NEGOTIATION) 

 
In accordance with the requirements of Article 31 of the Town and Country Planning (Development 
Management Procedure) (England) Order 2010 and the National Planning Policy Framework, the 
Council has worked in a positive and pro-active way and has imposed planning conditions to enable 
the grant of planning permission. 

 
 3 INFORMATIVE: BATS AND BIRDS 

 
Bats and birds are protected under the Wildlife & Countryside Act 1981 and the Countryside and 
Rights of Way Act 2000, it is an offence to deliberately or recklessly disturb them or damage their 
roosts or habitat. Therefore, close inspection of the trees should be undertaken prior to the 
commencement of works to determine if any bats or birds reside in the trees.  No works should 
occur while birds are nesting which may be at any time between the month of March to September 
inclusive;  if bats are present works should cease until the applicant has obtained further advice from 
Natural England on 0845 601 4523 or email wildlife@naturalengland.org.uk.  Further advice on bats 
is available from The Bat Conservation Trust 0845 1300 228. 

Page 45



This page is intentionally left blank



Planning Applications Determined Since Last Committee
Decision Date Decision Applicaition No: Applicant Proposal Address Case Officer

11/07/2023 23/00664/CDM Mr Mark Cooper Condition Discharge: Condition 13 
(sustainability) & 19 (tree planting) of 
application 22/00701/S73

41 North Hill Plymouth PL4 8EZ Mrs Karen GallacherAgreed Condition 
Details

12/07/2023 23/00739/16 CK Hutchison 
Networks (UK) Ltd

Installation of 15m high slim-line phase 9 
monopole, supporting 6 no. antennas, 1 no. 
wraparound equipment cabinet at the base 
of the monopole, 3 no. equipment cabinets 
and ancillary development thereto including 
1 no. GPS module.

Grass Verge At Poole Park Road 
Plymouth PL5 1DZ 

Helen BlacklockPrior Approval 
Required & Refused

12/07/2023 23/00880/AMD Mr Simon Sykes Non-material Amendment:  Swap the area to 
be clad from GF to FF and render the ground 
floor instead of clad - taking the cladding 
around the sides of the FF extension, Bring 
two sections of the ground floor out in line 
with the cantilevered first floor, Install a 
corner window in one of the above sections 
on ground floor looking into the garden - 
reducing the width of the slider next to the 
corner window, Remove a picture window on 
rear and replace with a high level ribbon 
window on the side GF and Slightly increase 
the height of the GF side window to run in at 
the same height as the ribbon window of 
application 22/02004/FUL

479 Tavistock Road Plymouth PL6 
7AA 

Mr Macauley PotterNon-material Minor 
Amendment Agreed

12/07/2023 23/00971/AMD University Hospitals 
Plymouth NHS Trust

Non-Material Amendment: To alter the 
specified external carriageway paving from 
block paving to a macadam surface, near to 
the East and West elevations of application 
21/02270/FUL10

Land North Of William Prance 
Road  Derriford Plymouth

Ms Marie 
Stainwright

Non-material Minor 
Amendment Agreed

12/07/2023 23/00122/FUL Mr Jon Rowson Retaining wall Ridgeway Plympton Plymouth PL7 
1FQ 

Mr Macauley PotterGrant Conditionally

15 August 2023 Page 1 of 17

P
age 47

A
genda Item

 7



Decision Date Decision Applicaition No: Applicant Proposal Address Case Officer

12/07/2023 23/00516/S73 Dr Javaid Aziz Variation of Condition 1 (Approved Plans) of 
application 22/00701/S73

41 North Hill Plymouth PL4 8EZ Mrs Karen GallacherGrant Conditionally

12/07/2023 23/00864/TPO Mr Ben Carter One tree, which is a privet tree. Coming from 
the private land and into our boundary line 
of our property. The tree is also leaning 
against our garage and potentially causing 
damage. I have spoken to the owner of the 
land and he has submitted a claim about a 
week ago. So what we need is for the whole 
tree to be taken down so we can put up a 
fence across our boundary. And stopping the 
tree coming any further into our land.

116 Grantley Gardens Plymouth 
PL3 5BS 

Alan RoweGrant Conditionally

12/07/2023 23/00574/FUL Mr Charlie Hill Vehicle hardstand and creation of new access. 118 Tamerton Foliot Road 
Plymouth PL6 5ES 

Mr Macauley PotterRefuse

13/07/2023 22/02133/FUL Mr Sandeep Manaktala Conversion, extension and change of use of 
existing building to form a language school 
containing classrooms,  with ancillary creche 
offices and community facility.

1 - 5 Manor Street Plymouth PL1 
1TL 

Mrs Karen GallacherGrant Conditionally

13/07/2023 23/00697/FUL Mr & Mrs Boylin Single storey rear extension, front porch and 
rear outbuilding

5 Moorland View Derriford 
Plymouth PL6 6AL 

Cody BeavanGrant Conditionally

13/07/2023 23/00656/FUL Mr Adam Osborne Two-storey rear extension 19 Bonville Road Plymouth PL6 
6TE 

Cody BeavanRefuse

14/07/2023 22/01308/CDM Ms Cath Atkins Condition Discharge: Conditions 4, 6 and 12 
of application 21/02270/FUL10

Land North Of William Prance 
Road  Plymouth Derriford 
Plymouth

Ms Marie 
Stainwright

Agreed Condition 
Details

15 August 2023 Page 2 of 17

P
age 48



Decision Date Decision Applicaition No: Applicant Proposal Address Case Officer

14/07/2023 22/02054/S73 Sutton Harbour Group 
PLC

Variation of Condition 1 (Approved Plans) & 
27 (Specified Use Restriction) of application 
22/01383/S73 to allow additional roof 
terrace and use of ground floor commercial 
unit as shop (Class E(a)), Cafe/Restaurant 
(Class E(b)), Financial/Professional Services 
(Class E(c)) or office (Class E(g))

Harbour Arch Quay  Sutton 
Harbour  Plymouth PL4 0HN  

Mrs Janine WarneGrant Conditionally

14/07/2023 21/02071/FUL Mr Robbie Brown Residential development of 50 dwellings, 
accessed via Phase 9 area, including strategic 
landscaping and drainage infrastructure and 
new pedestrian/cycle connections

Land To The West Of Phase 9, 
Seaton Neighbourhood 
(Palmerston Heights) Plymouth  

Mrs Janine WarneGrant Subject to 
S106 Obligation - Full

18/07/2023 23/00621/16 CK Hutchison 
Networks (UK) Ltd.

Installation of 16m pole inc. antennas, 
ground based apparatus and ancillary 
development.

Budshead Road Plymouth PL5 4DU Mr Macauley PotterPrior Approval 
Required & Given

18/07/2023 23/00193/CDM Persimmon Homes 
South West

Condition Discharge: Condition 8 of 
application 18/01104/REM

Saltram Meadows Primary School  
The Ride Plymouth Plymstock 

Ms Marie 
Stainwright

Agreed Condition 
Details

18/07/2023 23/00289/CDM Mr Mark Cooper Condition Discharge: Condition 15 (refuse 
details) of application 23/00516/S73

41 North Hill Plymouth PL4 8EZ Mrs Karen GallacherAgreed Condition 
Details

18/07/2023 23/00929/CDM Mr Nigel Passmore Condition Discharge: Condition 7 of 
application 23/00514/FUL

Land Off William Prance Road 
Derriford Plymouth 

Mr Daniel ThorningAgreed Condition 
Details

18/07/2023 23/00767/FUL Mr Malcolm Shearer Erection of double garage and front porch 
with minor garden reconfiguration.

4 Cotton Close Plymouth PL7 1JA Mr Macauley PotterGrant Conditionally

18/07/2023 23/00798/FUL Mr Steve Westbrook Removal of existing rear conservatory and 
erection of single storey rear extension

35 Treverbyn Road Plymouth PL7 
4ER 

Luke ValentineGrant Conditionally

15 August 2023 Page 3 of 17

P
age 49



Decision Date Decision Applicaition No: Applicant Proposal Address Case Officer

18/07/2023 23/00806/FUL Mr & Mrs Richards Demolition of existing side garage and 
erection of single storey side extension and 
raised roof on rear extension (re-submission 
of 23/00238/FUL)

72 Priory Drive Plymouth PL7 1PX Cody BeavanGrant Conditionally

20/07/2023 23/00764/TCO Michael 2x Hornbeam (T1 & T2) - Raise crowns to 
4.5m from base and reduce length of 
horizontal branches adjacent to building by 
1m no higher than adjacent buildings. In Img. 
1, the yellow line represents the height at 
which the crown raise will end; and the red 
line represents the distance from the house 
the reduction of horizontal branches will end. 
Img. 1 applies to both T1 and T2.

81A Vauxhall Street Plymouth PL4 
0HB 

Alan RoweApproved

20/07/2023 23/00822/TCO Bettison London Plane (T1) - Reduce entire canopy by 
approximately 1.5-2m aiming to keep the 
trees natural shape.

Gordon Court, 4 Craigie Drive 
Plymouth PL1 3JB 

Alan RoweApproved

20/07/2023 23/00856/TCO Vinken Silver Birch (T1) - Fell to ground level due to 
limbs dying off throughout the entire canopy,

7 Alfred Street Plymouth PL1 2RP Alan RoweApproved

20/07/2023 23/00249/FUL Mrs S Kalpana Two storey rear extension and relocation of 
AC units to roof.

54A Townshend Avenue Plymouth 
PL2 1PB 

Mr Macauley PotterGrant Conditionally

20/07/2023 23/00273/FUL Mr Phil Rump Replacement of existing non-opening 
windows on the sides of the front bay and 
the rear side bay with windows with opening 
sections

Flat 5, 2 Hoe Road Plymouth PL1 
3DE

Mr Mike StoneGrant Conditionally

20/07/2023 23/00631/FUL Mr & Mrs Harris-Joce Proposed loft conversion with front and rear 
dormers and two storey rear extension.

27 Herbert Street Plymouth PL2 
1RX 

Mr Macauley PotterGrant Conditionally

15 August 2023 Page 4 of 17

P
age 50



Decision Date Decision Applicaition No: Applicant Proposal Address Case Officer

20/07/2023 23/00657/TPO Mr James Edmonds Tree works as specified is provided tree 
works package

Marsh Mills China Clay Works 
Coypool Road Plymouth PL7 4QR 

Mr Chris DawsonGrant Conditionally

20/07/2023 23/00690/FUL Mr Graham Kinchin & 
William Lahive

Change of use from office to 4no. flats (Class 
C3), inc. first floor side extension

92 Devonport Road Plymouth PL3 
4DF 

Mr Sam LewisGrant Conditionally

20/07/2023 23/00735/TPO Mr Jethro Jones Lime (T1) - either pollarding or removal. 62 Milehouse Road Plymouth PL3 
4DA 

Alan RoweGrant Conditionally

20/07/2023 23/00819/TPO Cook Elm (T1) - Crown raise all round to achieve a 
clearance of 4m from ground level and thin 
outermost canopy on all sides by a maximum 
of 15% aiming to reduce the weight and 
excessive growth caused by previous pruning 
which is leading to limb failures around the 
canopy.

71 Green Park Road Plymouth PL9 
9JA 

Alan RoweGrant Conditionally

20/07/2023 23/00850/TPO Harriet Gosling Beech (T8796) - Section fell to ground level - 
due to continuous decline in health noted 
over the past 2.5 years.

Admiralty House  Mount Wise 
Plymouth PL1 4HZ

Alan RoweGrant Conditionally

20/07/2023 23/00870/TPO Mr Alan Street Ash (T1) - Fell due to Ash Dieback. 4 Horswell Close Plymouth PL7 
2NG 

Alan RoweGrant Conditionally

21/07/2023 23/00781/CDM Mr David Jones Condition Discharge: Conditions 3, 4, 5 & 6 of 
application 22/00329/FUL

Saltram House, Saltram Merafield 
Road Plymouth PL7 1UH 

Miss Amy ThompsonAgreed Condition 
Details

21/07/2023 23/00736/S73 Mr Y Azizi Variation of Condition 1 (Approved Plans) 
and removal of Conditions 3 (Flood 
Resilience) & 4 (CEMP) of application 
22/01630/FUL

135 Hoe Road Plymouth PL1 3DE Ms Abbey EdwardsGrant Conditionally

15 August 2023 Page 5 of 17

P
age 51



Decision Date Decision Applicaition No: Applicant Proposal Address Case Officer

21/07/2023 23/00763/FUL Mr & Mrs Edmonds Single storey side extension 3 Philip Close Plymouth PL9 8QZ Mr Mike StoneGrant Conditionally

21/07/2023 23/00775/FUL Mr & Mrs Ryles Single storey rear extension and rear raised 
deck

23 Honicknowle Lane Plymouth 
PL2 3QS 

Luke ValentineGrant Conditionally

21/07/2023 23/00785/FUL Miss Amy Neale Two-storey side extension 17 Kingston Close Plymouth PL7 
2XA 

Luke ValentineGrant Conditionally

21/07/2023 23/00755/FUL Mr Jonathan Sims Erection of one dwelling Land Adj. Millstones Hotel 
Tavistock Road Plymouth PL6 7HD  

Mr Macauley PotterRefuse

24/07/2023 22/01883/CDM Babcock International 
Group

Condition Discharge: Conditions 4, 5, 6, 9 & 
23 of application 21/01177/FUL

10 Dock And Associated Land  
Devonport Royal Dockyard 
Plymouth  

Mr Simon OsborneAgreed Condition 
Details

24/07/2023 23/00078/CDM University Hospitals 
Plymouth NHS Trust

Condition Discharge: Conditions 5, 12 & 13 of 
application 21/02000/FUL10

Derriford Hospital Derriford Road 
Plymouth PL6 8DH 

Ms Marie 
Stainwright

Agreed Condition 
Details

24/07/2023 23/00769/CDM Kim Stepney Condition Discharge: Condition 3 of 
application 23/00183/FUL

89 St Modwen Road Plymouth PL6 
8LH 

Mr Macauley PotterAgreed Condition 
Details

24/07/2023 23/01045/CDM TJ Morris Limited Condition Discharge: Condition 11 of 
application 21/02266/FUL

Errill Retail Park, Plymouth Road 
Plymouth PL7 4JP  

Miss Carly FrancisAgreed Condition 
Details

24/07/2023 22/02121/FUL Mr Jon Spiller Two-storey side and single storey rear 
extension

11 Peeks Avenue Plymouth PL9 
9BZ 

Mr Mike StoneGrant Conditionally

15 August 2023 Page 6 of 17

P
age 52



Decision Date Decision Applicaition No: Applicant Proposal Address Case Officer

24/07/2023 23/00721/FUL Mr A Dhanda Converson of integral garage to accessible 
accommodation together with construction 
of detached replacement garage

11 Roborough Avenue Plymouth 
PL6 6AG 

Luke ValentineGrant Conditionally

24/07/2023 23/00771/FUL Miss Alison Hicks Change of use to supported accommodation 
for up to 9 women including staff 
accommodation/office space

27 Sutherland Road Plymouth PL4 
6BW 

Ms Abbey EdwardsGrant Conditionally

24/07/2023 23/00797/FUL Mr Temesgen Ahferom Change of use from flooring 
warehouse/showroom to vehicle repair 
garage with MOT facilities (Sui Generis)

26 Stonehouse Street Plymouth 
PL1 3PE 

Mr Sam LewisGrant Conditionally

24/07/2023 23/00825/FUL Mr Martin Newman Construction of rear external accessible fire 
protected lift and adjoining lobby

207 Outland Road Plymouth PL2 
3PF 

Mr Sam LewisGrant Conditionally

25/07/2023 23/00486/FUL Mr & Mrs Herbert Double garage, new front boundary wall and 
access gate

176 Beacon Park Road Plymouth 
PL2 2QS 

Mr Macauley PotterGrant Conditionally

25/07/2023 23/00696/S73 Grant & Toby Noble & 
Roach

Variation of Condition 1 (Approved Plans) for 
application 17/02163/REM to amend the 
design of 2no. dwellings

Land Adjacent To 18A Torland 
Road Plymouth PL3 5TS  

Mr Sam LewisGrant Conditionally

25/07/2023 23/00841/FUL Ms Natasha Stevens Demolition of garage and erection of 
attached single storey garage

8 Hill Lane Plymouth PL3 5QX Mr Sam LewisGrant Conditionally

26/07/2023 23/01022/AMD Amazon UK Services 
Ltd

Non-material Amendment: Amend the 
approved landscaping scheme, seeking to 
relocate the positioning of the trees on the 
site of application 20/00817/FUL

Thornbury Road Plymouth PL6 7PP Mr Daniel ThorningNon-material Minor 
Amendment Agreed

15 August 2023 Page 7 of 17

P
age 53



Decision Date Decision Applicaition No: Applicant Proposal Address Case Officer

26/07/2023 23/00549/FUL Mrs Siobhan Emond Erec on of a single storey annex  Constructed 
of brick. All utilities will be connected to main 
dwelling.

30 Biggin Hill Plymouth PL5 2PN Mr Macauley PotterGrant Conditionally

26/07/2023 23/00639/FUL Ms A Collins Replacement of conservatory 2A Roborough Close Plymouth PL6 
6AH 

Cody BeavanGrant Conditionally

26/07/2023 23/00839/LBC Ms A Collins Replacement of conservatory 2A Roborough Close Plymouth PL6 
6AH 

Cody BeavanGrant Conditionally

27/07/2023 23/01021/AMD Plymouth City Council Non-material amendment: Proposed 
reinforced earth wall in 21/02269/S73 is 
being removed and replaced with regraded 
natural profile bank in order to ensure there 
is no impact on a tree's root protection area.

Central Park Plymouth  Mrs Katie SaundersNon-material Minor 
Amendment Agreed

27/07/2023 23/00672/FUL Mr R Hart Change of use of ground floor from 
hairdressers (Class E) to 1no. flat (Class C3)

9 Wyndham Street East Plymouth 
PL1 5HE 

Mr Sam LewisGrant Conditionally

27/07/2023 23/00875/FUL Miss Sarah Bowden Proposed rear extension with raised decking 
and hip to gable roof conversion on south 
elevation.

18 The Grove Plymstock Plymouth 
PL9 7DY 

Mr Mike StoneGrant Conditionally

27/07/2023 23/00888/FUL Mr Ian Nicholls Open-sided rear garden outbuilding 
(retrospective)

Flat C, 5 Hartley Avenue Plymouth 
PL3 5HW 

Mr Sam LewisGrant Conditionally

27/07/2023 23/00936/FUL Dr Shayne Hussain Removal of front porch and construction of 
single storey front extension

54 St Boniface Close Plymouth PL2 
3QN 

Mr Mike StoneGrant Conditionally

15 August 2023 Page 8 of 17

P
age 54



Decision Date Decision Applicaition No: Applicant Proposal Address Case Officer

28/07/2023 23/00814/CDM Mr Nick Powell Condition Discharge: Condition 16 of 
application 21/00989/S73

University Of Plymouth Babbage 
Building 24 James Street Plymouth 
PL4 6EQ 

Miss Katherine 
Graham

Agreed Condition 
Details

28/07/2023 23/00885/CDM McBride Condition Discharge: Condition 9 of 
application 20/01963/S73

Intercity House  Plymouth Station 
Plymouth PL4 6AB  

Miss Katherine 
Graham

Agreed Condition 
Details

28/07/2023 23/00501/FUL Mr Paul Williams Hardstanding to front of property 45 Cressbrook Drive Plymouth PL6 
8RY 

Mr Macauley PotterGrant Conditionally

28/07/2023 23/00632/FUL Mr Robin Chappell Single storey rear extension 47 Lucas Lane Plymouth PL7 4EU Cody BeavanGrant Conditionally

28/07/2023 23/00823/FUL Mr P Davenport Change of use from residential dwelling 
(Class C3) to HMO (Sui Generis) inc. provision 
of bike and bin stores and external steps (re-
submission of 23/00357/FUL)

96 Saltash Road Keyham Plymouth 
PL2 1QS 

Mr Jon FoxRefuse

31/07/2023 23/00515/CDM Mr Darren Wills Condition Discharge: Condition 4 & 8 of 
application 21/02003/FUL

Land At Sherril Close Plymouth PL9 
9DB  

Ms Abbey EdwardsAgreed Condition 
Details

31/07/2023 23/00597/FUL Mr & Mrs Corish Technical Details Consent following grant of 
Permission In Principle (22/00254/PIP) for a 
detached self build dwelling with parking, 
replacement parking for 162 Dunstone View 
and site landscaping.

162 Dunstone View Plymouth PL9 
8QL 

Ms Abbey EdwardsGrant Conditionally

01/08/2023 23/00802/FUL Miss Totterdell Conversion of flat 4 into 2 flats with creation 
of 2nd floor access.

14 Victoria Place Plymouth PL2 
1BY 

Mr Macauley PotterGrant Conditionally

15 August 2023 Page 9 of 17

P
age 55



Decision Date Decision Applicaition No: Applicant Proposal Address Case Officer

02/08/2023 21/00525/FUL Mr Edmund Chapell Rear extension and roof terrace 
(retrospective)

3 Green Park Avenue Plymouth 
PL4 6PG 

Mr Mike StoneGrant Conditionally

02/08/2023 23/00635/FUL Mr Dickerson Single storey rear extension with single side 
garage

73 Montacute Avenue Plymouth 
PL5 3PR 

Cody BeavanGrant Conditionally

02/08/2023 23/00813/ADV Plymouth City Council Advertisement hoardings to promote the 
redevelopment of  Colin Campbell Court and 
surrounding area

Western Approach Plymouth  Mr Sam LewisGrant Conditionally

02/08/2023 23/00817/FUL Mr Royston Sumner Single storey front extension creating new 
office

Fort Stamford Health And Fitness 
Stamford Lane Plymouth PL9 9TU 

Ms Abbey EdwardsGrant Conditionally

02/08/2023 23/00849/FUL Mr & Mrs Simpson Single storey side extension 9 Hemerdon Heights Plymouth PL7 
2EX 

Luke ValentineGrant Conditionally

02/08/2023 23/00800/FUL Mr Colin Wilkinson Demolition of existing garage and 
construction of new garage

1 Derwent Avenue Plymouth PL3 
6JW 

Cody BeavanRefuse

03/08/2023 23/00890/CDMLB Mr Bettison Condition Discharge: Condition 3 of 
application 22/01293/LBC

Gordon Court, 4 Craigie Drive 
Plymouth PL1 3JB 

Ms Abbey EdwardsAgreed Condition 
Details

03/08/2023 23/00863/FUL Mr C Gaydon Single storey habitable outbuilding 19 Arden Grove Plymouth PL2 3RN Luke ValentineGrant Conditionally

15 August 2023 Page 10 of 17

P
age 56



Decision Date Decision Applicaition No: Applicant Proposal Address Case Officer

04/08/2023 23/00878/TPO Mr Geoffrey Kelly To prune all overhanging branches that 
extend into the boundary of my 
property.  There is also a large tree in my 
garden within my property boundary (a swap 
cypress tree) which it is also my intention to 
prune and I'm going to assume it is also 
subject to the TPO No. 414 for the area 
hence I will mention it here now also. It is my 
intention to prune the branches of this tree 
and remove approximately 20% of the overall 
height of the tree. Whilst the purpose of this 
is in part for the same reason as pruning the 
overhanging branches on the PCC owned 
trees (to prevent falling branches), it is to 
allow additional light onto the top portion/ 
lawn area of the back garden. Our back 
garden is land that lies at the lowest point in 
the valley, notable by the Chaddlewood 
Stream that runs just behind the rear 
boundary of our back garden, and as such 
the land can become very waterlogged at 
times of heavy rainfall. A reduction in height 
of the tree thus allowing additional sunlight 
onto the top portion/ lawn area will aid and 
hopefully speed-up the time it takes to dry 
out after each time it rains. This swamp 
cypress tree is also a very large tree which 
need attention so it makes sense to conduct 
any pruning work to this tree now rather 
than in the (very) near future by way of a 
separate application.

10 Chelwood Grove Plymouth PL7 
2AX 

Alan RoweTree Split Decision

04/08/2023 23/00925/TCO Townsend House T4 Holm Oak. Re-pollard Townsend House Hermitage Road 
Plymouth PL3 4RT 

Alan RoweApproved

04/08/2023 23/00940/TCO Mrs INGRID VAN DER 
SCHOUW

Remove trees and replant whilst promoting 
existing laurel bay hedge.

The Old School Rock Hill Plymouth 
PL5 4NY 

Alan RoweApproved

15 August 2023 Page 11 of 17

P
age 57



Decision Date Decision Applicaition No: Applicant Proposal Address Case Officer

04/08/2023 23/01067/AMD Mr Nicholas Wellstead Non-material Amendment: Additional full 
height window in west elevation and 
updated details on parking drainage 
provision of application 23/00199/FUL

16 Richmond Road Plymouth PL6 
5EE 

Mr Macauley PotterNon-material Minor 
Amendment Agreed

04/08/2023 23/00701/TPO Richard Prowse Fell one Ilex Oak and coppice a second Ilex 
Oak

8 Compton Leigh Plymouth PL3 
5JW 

Alan RoweGrant Conditionally

04/08/2023 23/00778/TPO Mrs Wendy Pryke T1 Oak, Lift lower crown to a finish height of 
6m from ground, reduce upper crown by 1-
2m from 10m to 8m, lateral growth on all 
sides by 1m crown spread from 8m to 6m 
approx., cutting no greater than 50 mm, 
leving a finish height of 10 -12m,   T2 Beech, 
reduction of upper crown height 2-2.5m 12m 
to 9.5m, lateral growth an all sides 2-2.5m 
crown spread from 12m to 10m, cutting no 
greater than 50mm, leaving a finish height of 
12-15m, house side is close and touches in 
winds T3 liquid amber, reduc on of upper 
crown height by up to 2m from height of 
10m to 8 m and lateral growth of 1-2m all 
sides crown spread from 8m to 6m. Cutting 
no greater than 50mm, T4 not known, 2m 
vertical height reduction from 5m to 3m, 
reduce lateral growth by 1m crown spread 
reduc on from 2.5m to 1.5m.   G1 Ash and 
Sycamores, cut lateral growth back to 
boundary line 3m lateral reduction, length of 
branches on number 8 side will be left at 
either stem 0 - 1m long 

8 Candish Drive Plymouth PL9 8DB Alan RoweGrant Conditionally

04/08/2023 23/00827/FUL Mr And Mrs C 
Glendinning

Single storey rear extension. 93 Frensham Avenue Plymouth 
PL6 7JN 

Mr Macauley PotterGrant Conditionally

15 August 2023 Page 12 of 17

P
age 58



Decision Date Decision Applicaition No: Applicant Proposal Address Case Officer

04/08/2023 23/00891/TPO Eve Harper-Stitson G9 - Remove all deadwood greater than 
50mm in diameter. T7 - Standing dead tree.  
Fell to near ground level. Ash (T006) - 
Dismantle and fell to near ground level.  
Holm Oaks (G6) - Remove all deadwood 
greater than 50mm in diameter. Prune away 
from adjacent building to provide clearance 
of 2m. Ash (T3) - Sever ivy at base.  1x Beech 
& 1x Holm Oak (G8) - Crown lift Holm Oak to 
3m above ground level and prune away from 
building to achieve 2m clearance. Remove 
deadwood over 50mm in diameter.

Stoke Damerel Primary School 
Collingwood Road Plymouth PL1 
5PA 

Alan RoweGrant Conditionally

04/08/2023 23/00905/FUL Mr Mike Warburton Removal of existing garage and construction 
of new enlarged garage and side store

5 Boswell Close Plymouth PL5 3LJ Luke ValentineGrant Conditionally

04/08/2023 23/00941/TPO Mr Bob Whear Fell one Ash tree 1 Blue Haze Close Plymouth PL6 
7HR 

Alan RoweGrant Conditionally

04/08/2023 23/00942/TPO Eve Harper-Stitson G9.  Remove all deadwood greater than 
50mm in diameter. T7.  Standing dead tree.  
Fell to near ground level. T006.  1x Ash -  
Dismantle and fell to near ground level.  
Works required due to Ash dieback. G6.  Holm 
Oaks -  Remove all deadwood greater than 
50mm in diameter.  Prune away from 
adjacent building to provide clearance of 
2m T3.  Ash- Sever ivy at base. G8. 1x Beech & 
1x Holm Oak - Crown lift Holm Oak to 3m 
above ground level and prune away from 
building to achieve 2m clearance.  Remove 
deadwood over 50mm in diameter.

Stoke Damerel Primary School 
Collingwood Road Plymouth PL1 
5PA 

Alan RoweGrant Conditionally

04/08/2023 23/00949/TPO Mr Joe Berryman T1 Beech, thin crown by 25%, lift lower 
crown on all sides to a finish height of 5.5m + 
reduce on lowest limb at 5m SW side by up 
to 2m,

29 Hilton Avenue Plymouth PL5 
3HS 

Alan RoweGrant Conditionally

15 August 2023 Page 13 of 17

P
age 59



Decision Date Decision Applicaition No: Applicant Proposal Address Case Officer

04/08/2023 23/00922/TPO Mr Andy Foers Beech tree-  reduction of lateral limbs 
extending over into the garden approx by 
half and 1m crown reduc on  

13 Little Fancy Close Plymouth PL6 
7DR 

Alan RoweRefuse

07/08/2023 23/00824/CDM Mr Mick Hanson Condition Discharge: Conditions 3, 4, 5, 6, 7, 
8, 9 & 10 of application 21/02060/FUL

Land At St Peters Close Plymouth 
PL7 1NW  

Mr Jon FoxAgreed Condition 
Details

07/08/2023 23/00031/FUL10 University Hospitals 
NHS Trust

Erection of new Fracture Clinic and Urgent 
Treatment Centre (UTC)

Derriford Hospital Derriford Road 
Plymouth PL6 8DH 

Ms Marie 
Stainwright

Grant Conditionally

08/08/2023 22/01695/FUL Nudge Community 
Builders Ltd & Eat 
Work Art Ltd

Change of use of Ground Floor from Night 
Club (Sui Generis) to mixed use flexible start 
up spaces (Sui Generis) within Class E 
(Commercial, Business and Service) and B2 
(general industry) and external alterations to 
provide new openings and access

34 - 36 Union Street Plymouth PL1 
2EY 

Miss Amy ThompsonGrant Conditionally

08/08/2023 23/00643/FUL Mr Smith Hip-to-gable loft conversion with rear 
dormer, front store and new rear balcony

22 Darwin Crescent Plymouth PL3 
6DX 

Mr Macauley PotterGrant Conditionally

08/08/2023 23/00777/FUL Plymouth City Council Installation of 8no new windows 27 Burrington Way Plymouth PL5 
3LR 

Mr Simon OsborneGrant Conditionally

08/08/2023 23/00788/FUL Mr Raymond Lai Alterations to existing 8-bed HMO inc. hip to 
gable extension and rear dormer

2 Beechwood Avenue Plymouth 
PL4 6PW 

Mr Sam LewisGrant Conditionally

08/08/2023 23/00833/FUL Andrew Martin Installation of external wall insulation 1 - 12, 14, 15 & 17 - 26 Aldersley 
Walk, 1 - 5, 7, 9, 11, 15 - 73 (odds) 
& 75 - 84 Bellamy Close Plymouth  

Mr Daniel ThorningGrant Conditionally

15 August 2023 Page 14 of 17

P
age 60



Decision Date Decision Applicaition No: Applicant Proposal Address Case Officer

08/08/2023 23/00840/FUL Andrew Martin Installation of an insulated render system / 
external wall insulation to service family 
housing.

1 - 8 & 9 - 21 (odds) Pepys Place 
Plymouth PL5 3DS  

Mr Daniel ThorningGrant Conditionally

08/08/2023 23/00862/FUL Mr & Mrs Harris Single storey rear extension, new detached 
garage and associated external works 
(Resubmission of 23/00106/FUL)

6 Dean Road Plymouth PL7 4HE Cody BeavanGrant Conditionally

09/08/2023 23/00747/FUL Mrs Rebecca Waters Single storey side extension and rear raised 
decking

60 Rydal Close Plymouth PL6 8TR Luke ValentineGrant Conditionally

09/08/2023 23/00906/FUL Mr Adam Tingle Detached garage in front garden (Part 
retrospective)

40 Dean Hill Plymouth PL9 9AE Mr Mike StoneGrant Conditionally

09/08/2023 23/00908/FUL Mr Azad Dosky Erection of two storey rear extension 3 Greatlands Crescent Plymouth 
PL2 3JB 

Luke ValentineGrant Conditionally

09/08/2023 23/00938/FUL Mr and Mrs J 
Chamberlain

Single storey rear and side extension inc. 
removal of existing single storey side 
extension

20 Hill Top Crest Plymouth PL5 2DZ Luke ValentineGrant Conditionally

09/08/2023 23/00835/S73 Mrs Sally Gibbons Variation of Conditions 1 and 4 following 
enforcement appeal 
APP/N1160/C/22/3309917

97 Lake View Drive Plymouth PL5 
4LW 

Mr Macauley PotterRefuse

11/08/2023 22/01689/CDM Sanctuary Housing Condition Discharge (Part): Conditions 5, 6, 9 
& 12 of application 20/01737/FUL

Talbot Gardens Plymouth PL5 1BU Mr Simon OsborneAgreed Condition 
Details

11/08/2023 23/00553/CDM Barratt David Wilson 
Homes

Condition Discharge: Condition 13 of 
application 19/01288/OUT

Former China Clay Dryer Works 
Coypool Road Plymouth  

Mr Simon OsborneAgreed Condition 
Details

15 August 2023 Page 15 of 17

P
age 61



Decision Date Decision Applicaition No: Applicant Proposal Address Case Officer

11/08/2023 23/00625/CDM Coyde Construction Condition Discharge: Conditions 3, 7, 12 & 13 
of application 21/00478/FUL

St Helens Walk Plymouth PL5 4HQ Mr Jon FoxAgreed Condition 
Details

11/08/2023 23/00923/CDM Babcock International 
Group

Condition Discharge: Condition 11 of 
application 21/01177/FUL

10 Dock And Associated Land  
Devonport Royal Dockyard 
Plymouth 

Mr Simon OsborneAgreed Condition 
Details

11/08/2023 22/01891/FUL Mr A Pooley Two-storey side extension, extension at first 
floor level  and single storey rear extension

3 Maitland Drive Plymouth PL3 
5RU 

Mr Mike StoneGrant Conditionally

11/08/2023 23/00015/FUL10 University Hospitals 
Plymouth NHS Trust

Retrospective application for the erection of 
temporary (up to 5 years) modular medical 
facility with associated landscaping and 
parking.

Derriford Hospital Derriford Road 
Plymouth PL6 8DH 

Ms Marie 
Stainwright

Grant Conditionally

11/08/2023 23/00360/FUL Mr Nigel Salmon Retention of use of premises to E Uses on 
ground floor, and ancillary function room on 
first floor and use of first and second floor to 
create two self-contained apartments and 
retention of internal, and external alterations.

5 Southside Street Plymouth PL1 
2LA 

Mr Sam LewisGrant Conditionally

11/08/2023 23/00361/LBC Mr Nigel Salmon Retention of internal and external alterations 5 Southside Street Plymouth PL1 
2LA 

Mr Sam LewisGrant Conditionally

11/08/2023 23/00847/FUL Mr & Mrs Noble Removal of existing shed and replace with 
new workshop/garden store

2 Spencer Road Plymouth PL9 7DF Mr Mike StoneGrant Conditionally

11/08/2023 23/00992/FUL Mr & Mrs Layfield Single storey side extension 1 Homer Rise Plymouth PL9 8NE Mr Mike StoneGrant Conditionally

15 August 2023 Page 16 of 17

P
age 62



Decision Date Decision Applicaition No: Applicant Proposal Address Case Officer

14/08/2023 23/00987/TCO Mr Phillip Rump Sycamores (G1) - Cut back all overhanging 
branches back to the main stems 
approximatly 2-3m T1 - Dead tree, fell.

Belmont House Belmont Place 
Plymouth PL3 4DN 

Alan RoweApproved

14/08/2023 23/00993/TCO Plymouth Community 
Homes

Turkey Oak (T1) & Willow (T2) - Fell. 14 Penlee Road Plymouth PL3 4AU Alan RoweApproved

14/08/2023 23/00889/FUL Mr Cheri Bailey Removal of ground floor windows and infil 
panels to be replaced with rendered panels 
below cill height and windows above.  
Addition of accessible ramp to south 
entrance.  New entrance doors to south and 
north entrances.

University Of St Mark And St John, 
Dix House Plymbridge Lane 
Plymouth PL6 8BH 

Luke ValentineGrant Conditionally

15 August 2023 Page 17 of 17

P
age 63



T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Minutes
	Minutes
	 Voting schedule - 20 July 2023

	6.1 19 Canhaye Close, Plymouth, PL7 1PG - 23/00752/FUL
	6.2 9 Guelder Way, Plymouth, PL6 6FR - 23/00955/FUL
	6.3 Land at Petersfield Close, Plymouth, PL3 6QP - 22/01994/FUL
	7 Planning Application Decisions Issued

